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| am pleased to present the results of Group Sense
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the 9 months ended 31
December 2015 on behalf of the Company’s Board of
Directors (the “Board”) for the shareholders’ perusal.

Since its official establishment on 26 March 2015, the new
Board has been planning the Group’s future development
directions and has conducted a number of discussions
in relation to the improvement of existing businesses
and the development of new business. A lot of marketing
researches have been conducted in the course of seeking
new investments and business opportunities. In view of
the inevitable new economic growth trend in which green,
low-carbon cycle of development is promoted globally,
lighter and stronger new magnesium alloy material, as a
“green engineering material with the most development
and application potentials in the 21st century”, has become
the global focus of application research and development.
As magnesium alloy has obvious advantage in the its
properties as a material as well as in casting processing, it
is expected to set new trends in the automotive industry and
such other applications as aerospace, electronic products
and transportation applications. In China’s 13th Five-Year
Plan, magnesium alloys, being high-performance lightweight
alloy structural materials, have been listed as a special
focus in the “development of strategic emerging industries”
and were widely promoted. It is expected that by the end
of 2020, China’s magnesium production will reach 1.3
million tons. Favorable national policies will be an impetus
for the long term development of magnesium. As China
has rich resource of magnesium, the Group’s effort in the
development of magnesium and its related business not only
represents an observance of Chinese government’s policies
and directions in the industry, but also means unlimited
business opportunities for the Group in view of the huge
market prospects of the magnesium alloys as new materials.

To expedite the Group’s smooth transition into the
magnesium business, the Group announced the acquisition
of a magnesium product manufacturer located in Xinjiang in
August 2015. Currently, its annual magnesium production
capacity is 15,000 tonnes, which can be expanded to
60,000 tonnes according to the future plan. We believe that
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this acquisition has laid a solid foundation for the Group in
the development of a circular economy industrial chain in
magnesium and magnesium alloy related business. It has
also provided a new opportunity as well as new dynamics
for the Group’s long term growth.

Regarding the existing electronics business, the Group
will continue to consolidate this electronics manufacturing
segment to improve its performance. The management will
focus more on the development of magnesium business,
while the electronic business will be lead by the existing
team. In the coming year, we will further strengthen the
market research of electronic products business, develop
appropriate and diversified product mix and at the same
time step up our effort to explore market share and
sales channels, enhance sales establishments, strive to
control expenditures and costs and enhance the overall
management and operating efficiency.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any payment of final
dividend to the shareholders of the Company for the period
from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015.

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my sincere gratitude to the
Group’s management and the staff for their hard work and
contributions in the past year. | would also like to thank our
shareholders, members of the Board, customers, bankers
and other partners for their great support. We will be
faithful to our duties, and with our continuous effort, we are
committed to the creation of returns to the shareholders as
well as the sustainable development of the Group.

By order of the Board
Mr. Shum Sai Chit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Against the backdrop of the continuing sluggish global
economy, a decline in total sales revenue was driven by the
drop in sales of existing electronic business of the Group for
the nine months ended 31 December 2015. Nevertheless,
thanks to effective cost control, the operation loss has been
significantly reduced. The Group will continue to stringently
control costs and optimize processes to improve operational
efficiency. In the third quarter of 2015, the Group has
officially expanded into the magnesium and related
businesses, as to explore a new source of income for the
future.

The Magnesium Business

In August 2015, the Group announced the acquisition of
Xinjiang Tengxiang Magnesium Products Company Limited
(“Target Company”), a magnesium product manufacturer
in Xinjiang for the development of the Group’s magnesium
product and related businesses. The Target Company
principally engages in the production and distribution of
magnesium ingots and semi-coke. Its scales of production
approved by China’s supervisory authorities are annual
production capacities of 1.2 million tonnes of semi-coke,
60,000 tonnes of magnesium ingots, and 100,000 tonnes of
ferroalloy. The annual production capacities of the current
magnesium ingots and semi-coke production lines are
15,000 and 600,000 tonnes, respectively. Production has
been commenced in the first quarter of 2016.

Manufacturing Business Unit

The operating loss of manufacturing business unit has
been narrowed down attributable to the abovementioned
structural consolidation and effective cost control. The
unit will strive to enhance production efficiency in order to
maintain competitiveness. The Management is confident on
continual improvement in this segment.

Strategic Products Strategic Business Unit (“SP”)
Despite the fall of sales revenue from the Japanese market
amid economic downturn in Japan, the business unit has
significantly reduced its costs and narrowed its loss, through
strengthened cooperation with the design workshops and
various efficiency enhancement measures. The business unit
will implement business transformation and organizational
streamlining to improve overall business efficiency, stimulate
growth and create new values.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Personal Communication Products Strategic
Business Unit

The sales revenue of this section decreased driven by the
significant fall in demand of terminals for mobile point of
sale information system (POS), as a result of the adverse
global economy and market condition. The sales revenue
from Personal Communication Products Strategic Business
Unit reduced significantly.

Apart from continuing to develop the POS terminals and to
explore new markets, the business unit will also focus on
mobile payment related products, as well as the provision
of Customer Relations Management (CRM) systems for hotel
and retail industries.

Analysis of Revenue by Principal Activities

SRBREE mh
Strategic products
76.1%

Outlook

The awareness of greener and lighter materials is increasing
worldwide, which motivates the research and development
of light structural materials and its application. Magnesium
alloys, as a kind of new materials, its market demand is
expected to grow significantly. The Group is optimistic
on the development in its new magnesium business. The
Board will strive to develop the magnesium business with
the arising opportunities, and the development trend of
lightweight materials and energy saving. We believe our new
business will serve as a new growth driver of the Group.

Operational efficiency of the various existing businesses is
continually improving, losses are narrowing and will soon
turn into profit. The Group will continue to strive for market
development, streamline the organization structure, and
capitalize on the “internet+” business opportunity to expand
sales network, in order to further enhance operational
efficiency.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Sales revenue of the Group for the nine months ended 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$139,537,000 (For
the twelve months ended 31 March 2015: HK$223,933,000).
During the period under review, PCP and SP business
units recorded a sales revenue of HK$33,345,000 and
HK$106,192,000 respectively.

Operating Loss of the Group during the period under review
was approximately HK$19,805,000 (For the twelve months
ended 31 March 2015: approximately HK$79,466,000). After
deducting finance costs of approximately HK$934,000 (For
the twelve months ended 31 March 2015: approximately
HK$998,000) and other operating expenses of approximately
HK$180,000 (For the twelve months ended 31 March
2015: approximately HK$30,040,000), loss before tax was
approximately HK$20,919,000 (For the twelve months
ended 31 March 2015: approximately HK$110,504,000).
After taking into account of taxation, loss for the period was
approximately HK$20,919,000 (For the twelve months ended
31 March 2015: approximately HK$110,517,000).

Regarding the statement of financial position, inventories
increased by HK$23,059,000 to approximately
HK$58,590,000 and trade receivables decreased by
HK$821,000 to approximately HK$20,300,000.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

On 31 December 2015, the bank balances and cash of the
Group were approximately HK$375,649,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$113,064,000) of which HK$488,000 was pledged (31
March 2015: HK$1,012,000). The Group’s bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2015 were HK$68,927,000 (31 December
2015: HK$27,781,000). The Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars with floating interest rate
and short term in nature.

On 17 November 2015, the Company issued 1,437,195,029
offer shares of the Company at HK$0.20 per offer share on
the basis of one offer share for every one share in issue
on 23 October 2015. Details are stated in the Company’s
prospectus issued on 26 October 2015.

08 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the gearing ratio of the Group,
defined as total bank borrowings divided by shareholders’
equities, was approximately 15%. The interest expenses was
approximately HK$934,000 during the period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no contingent
liabilities (31 March 2015: approximately HK$4,895,000).

FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY
POLICY

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen, United States dollars or Renminbi. The usual treasury
policy of the Group is to manage significant currency
exposure and minimize currency risk whenever it may have
material impact to the Group. During the last twelve months
period, the Group did not engage in any interest rate or
currencies speculations.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has 73 employees (31
March 2015: 86 employees) in Hong Kong, 5 employees
(831 March 2015: 6 employees) in Japan and 907 employees
(831 March 2015 809 employees) in China, representing a
decrease of approximately 15% and 17% and an increase
of 12%, respectively, the Group also provides other fringe
benefits such as annual leave, medical insurance and
provident fund, etc. for its staff.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks
and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our
Group’s businesses. The followings are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by our Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below
which are not known to our Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Market risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or
affects ability to meet business objectives arising from
the movement in market demand, product prices, foreign
exchange rates, and interest rates. The management of our
Group keeps continually monitoring these exposures closely
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner against such risks.

Exchange rate risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from primarily with respect to
Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars, Japanese Yen and United
States Dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations. The Group’s
management does not expect the net foreign currency risk
from these activities to be significant and hence, the Group
does not presently hedge the foreign exchange risks.

The Group has planned to periodically reviews liquid assets
and liabilities held in currencies other than Hong Kong
Dollars to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and
consider the usage of hedging instruments when necessary.

Interest rate risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and
considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner
when appropriate, through variety of means.

Credit risk

The Group has always been aware of the credit risk
exposure of our customers. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
procedures required and ensured that all clients were
regularly assessed and be kept track of their transaction
records and credit history.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable
to meet its obligations when they fall due because of an
inability to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In
managing liquidity risk, our Group monitors cash flows and
maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent
to ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and
reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

10 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risks basically rests with functional departments of the
Group and its subsidiaries. Key functions of the Group is to
guide their standard operating procedures, limits of authority
and reporting framework. Our management will assess
key operational exposures and effect raised in business
development regularly, implement relevant measures and
improve the internal control so that risk can be responsed
and mitigated on a timely and effective manner.

Investment risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of
extension of its return period relative to the expected
return or occurrence of losses on any particular investment
attributable to changes of external factors. The Group is
well aware of importance of exploring various business
opportunities and territories on a continual basis, and also
implement as the top agenda of the year. Key concern
of projects investment framework will be balancing risk
and return across different investments, and thus risk
assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper investment assessment and due diligence
procedures have been set up and detailed analysis will
be made before approving investments. Regular updates
on the progress of the investments of our Group would be
submitted to the Board.

Manpower and retention risk

Manpower risk means huge demand for talents because
of the Group’s rapid business development while at the
same time facing severe competition over specialists from
the industry and turnover of manpower. Our Group may
face the risk of not being able to recruit and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills,
experience and competence to cope with the expansion of
business which would meet the business objectives of our
Group. Our Group will conduct a thorough analysis over
its remuneration system, as well as incentive mechanism
and optimize the compensation structure so as to ensure
remuneration packages can align reasonably with market
standard and maintain its competitiveness. Meanwhile,
recruitment channels are broadened and the talent pool
of senior management are strengthened, so as to further
enhance the promotion opportunities and career path of
employees. Systematic staff training are also being further
enhanced to increase the overall effectiveness of training
and the dissemination of corporate cultures and values.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Environmental policies and performance mainly means
increasing attention of PRC government paid to
environmental rules and policies and more strict regulatory
requirements. As subsidiaries and newly acquired
enterprises commenced into operation for a long while and
lag behind certain environmental and duty requirements
promulgated by PRC government. The Group monitors
impact on business development closely raised from
movements of environmental policy and external factors.
Acting in an environmentally responsible manner and
performing social responsibilities, the Group is committed to
improving and maintaining the long term sustainability of the
communities in which it operates. The Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient
use of resources, energy saving and waste reduction.
Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in daily
operation of the Group. Such initiatives include recycling
of resources, energy saving measures and water saving
practices.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws
and regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong. During
the nine months ended 31 December 2015 and up to the
date of this report, to the best of our knowledge, the Group
has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
mainland China and Hong Kong, and there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, which results significant loss and negative
impacts by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES AND KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

The number of employees of the Group was approximately
985 as at 31 December 2015. The remuneration of
employees was determined by the Group with reference
to their performance, work experience and current market
conditions. Employee benefits include annual leave, medical
insurance and provident fund scheme. There has been
no labour dispute or significant change in the relationship
with the employees that affect the normal operations of
the Group. The Directors believe that the Group maintains
admirable relations with its employees.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES AND KEY
STAKEHOLDERS (continued)

Our Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners, shareholders, investors
and banks to achieve its long-term goals. To keep up with
our key stakeholders closely, the Group has formulated
corresponding scheme about investor relationship, and also
holds tailored activities from time to time, such as annual/
extraordinary general meetings, on-site visits, seminars and
road-shows. Accordingly, our senior management have
kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business latest update about development of the
Group with them when appropriate. During the period, there
was no material dispute between our Group and its business
partners or banks.
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The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance to the long-term development of the Group and
has devoted considerable efforts in identifying, formulating,
implementing and enhancing corporate governance
practices in accordance with the needs of the Group.
As mentioned below, the Company has established the
relevant committees/sub-committee and adopted certain
internal policies to improve internal controls and enhance
transparency of business operation of the Group with a view
to protect the interests of its stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the nine months ended 31 December 2015, the
Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
save for the deviations as follows:

(a) Under Rule A.1.7, if a substantial shareholder or
a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to
be considered by the board which the board has
determined to be material, the matter should be dealt
with by a physical board meeting rather than a written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors who,
and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction should be present at that board meeting.

On 20 August 2015, Ming Xing Developments Limited,
a whole-owned subsidiary of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (“Century Sunshine”) (which held
51.88% of the shareholding interests in the Company as
at 20 August 2015) and Earnmill Holdings Limited (which
held 2.64% of the shareholding interests in the Company
as at 20 August 2015), as underwriters, entered into an
underwriting agreement with the Company in relation to
the full acceptance and underwriting of the Company’s
open offer. The entering into the underwriting agreement
between the Company, Ming Xing Developments Limited
and Earnmill Holdings Limited constitutes a connected
transaction.
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Mr. Shum Sai Chit, an executive director and the
chairman of the Company, is also the sole director
of Ming Xin Developments Limited, and an executive
director of Century Sunshine; Ms. Chi Bi Fen, an
executive director and the chief executive officer of
the Company, is also an executive director of Century
Sunshine; Mr. Kwong Ping Man, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, is also
an independent non-executive director of Century
Sunshine; and Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson, a non-
executive director of the Company, is also a director
of Earnmill which is owned jointly by him and by Mr.
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas. For the purpose of approving
the underwriting agreement, as Mr. Shum Sai Chit,
Ms. Chi Bi Fen, Mr. Kwong Ping Man and Dr. Tam Wai
Ho, Samson have positions in the Company, Century
Sunshine and/ or the underwriters, they are deemed to
have conflict of interests with respect to the relevant
transactions.

Due to business trips or other matters, a number of
directors were unable to attend the board meeting on 20
August 2015 personally to approve the open offer and
the connected transactions related to the underwriting
agreement. As such, the Board approved the relevant
transactions by way of resolution in writing, given that:

— before the execution of the relevant written
resolution, the contents of the written resolution
were fully communicated to each director and each
director has discussed the details of the transaction
by way of email or phone, and the resolution was
unanimously approved by the board (save for Mr.
Shum Sai Chit, Ms. Chi Bi Fen, Mr. Kwong Ping
Man and Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson who abstained
from voting in favour of the resolutions relating to
the open offer and the transactions due to potential
conflict of interests); and

— the written resolution was ratified in the board
meeting of 18 November 2015. Accordingly, the
Board considers that the deviations have not
caused any prejudice to the Company’s corporate
governance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(continued)

(b) Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should
also attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.

— Professor Meng Jian (being a non-executive
Director) and Mr. Chen Gang (being an independent
non-executive Director prior to his resignation on
7 March 2016) were unable to attend the annual
general meeting held on 11 September 2015 as
they were obliged to be away for other matters.

— Professor Meng Jian and Dr. Tam Wai Ho JP (being
non-executive Directors) and Mr. Chen Gang (being
an independent non-executive Director prior to his
resignation on 7 March 2016) were unable to attend
the special general meeting held on 14 October
2015 as they were obliged to be away for other
matters.

(c) Under Rules 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors and the audit
committee must comprise a minimum of three members.

Following the resignation of Mr. Chen Gang on 7 March
2016, the Company currently has two independent non-
executive directors and Audit Committee members, in
which it deviates from the requirement of Rules 3.10(1)
and Rule 3.21. The Company will identify a suitable
candidate for appointment as an independent non-
executive director and the member of Audit Committee
within three months from the date of resignation of Mr.
Chen Gang in order to comply with the requirements of
Rules 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
of the Group regarding securities transactions of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) on terms no less
exactly than required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the nine
months ended 31 December 2015.
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THE BOARD

Currently, the Board comprises the following six Directors:

Executive Directors
Shum Sai Chit (Chairman)
Chi Bi Fen (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Professor Meng Jian
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man
Cheung Sound Poon

Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall
strategies and policies of the Group, reviewing and
monitoring its financial performance, including preparing
and approving financial statements and overseeing
operational matters of the management, considering the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Daily
business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

Board meetings and practices

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices and agenda of regular board meetings are served
to all Directors at least fourteen days before the meetings to
ensure that all Directors are given the opportunity to attend
and to include matters in the agenda. Discussion materials
of regular board meetings are sent to all Directors for their
study at least three days prior to the meetings. Draft minutes
of board meetings are circulated to all Directors for review
and comments within a reasonable time after the meetings
prior to confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient
detail of the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings and practices (continued)

During the nine months ended 31 December 2015, five
board meetings were held by the Company, and the
individual attendance rate of each Director at meetings
of the Board, its committees and General Meetings is as
follows:

it/ Brzed
Attended/held
EZ883 ENZES9E REZE9S8:E FMZEREEE UIEEZEE RRAFAE
Executive
Audit Nomination Remuneration Management Members
Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings  Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
HTES Executive Directors
Lt Shum Sai Chit 505 — il — 2[2 313
HER Chi Bi Fen 505 — — il 2[2 0/3
FUTES Non-executive Directors
LEHE Professor Meng Jian 4/5 - — — — 0/3
EEF ATHT Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP 45 — — — — 1/3
BIEHTESZ  Independent Non-
executive Directors
BRx Kwong Ping Man 505 2/ 17 17 — 313
REK Cheung Sound Poon 5/5 2/2 — 11 — 3/3
R Chen Gang' 5/5 212 1/1 — — 0/3
! R-ZE—R"E=ZAtHET ! Resigned on 7 March 2016
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Following the resignation of Mr. Chen Gang on 7 March
2016, the Company currently has two Independent Non-
executive Directors and Audit Committee members, in which
it deviates from the requirement of Rules 3.10(1) and Rule
3.21. The Company will identify a suitable candidate for
appointment as an Independent Non-executive Director and
the member of Audit Committee within three months from
the date of resignation of Mr. Chen Gang in order to comply
with the requirements of Rules 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, at least one
of the remaining Independent Non-executive Directors has
appropriate accounting or related financial management
expertise The Board has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Board meetings and practices (continued)
There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
The Company updates the Directors of the latest changes
in the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time. Apart
from encouraging the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development (“CPD”) courses to refresh and
enhance their knowledge and skills, the Company also
arranged an industry-related in-house seminar for the
Directors and provided them with reading materials relating
to the directors’ duties. All Directors have provided the
Company with their records of training they received during
the nine months ended 31 December 2015.

A summary of the trainings participated by the Directors
during the nine months ended 31 December 2015 is as
follows:

BESERRENES"
Types of continuous
professional
development

Notes

E=x Directors training

HITES Executive Directors

Mottt FE Shum Sai Chit AFEB
A and B

HEZ Chi Bi Fen B

FHITESE Non-executive Directors

IR Professor Meng Jian B

EBES AT4t Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP B

BYEBTES Independent Non-executive Directors

B Kwong Ping Man AKB
A and B

REAR Cheung Sound Poon B

B Chen Gang' B

T ORSB-AESALARE
#iiz -

A S ESEIERE

B: BMEWRE TYEAERARREBAESTHE
NEAE - LR AN ELh 3 R B AR R 8
RETENRNER

! Resigned on 7 March 2016
Notes:

A:  Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)

B: Reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the Company’s
business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, etc.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties of the Company in accordance
with the “Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance
Function” adopted by it:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
appropriate recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the period under review, the Board has performed
the following corporate governance duties:

e Reviewed and approved the contents of the Corporate
Governance Report included in the 2015 annual report
of the Company;

e Adopted the “Board Diversity Policy”; and

e Reviewed the Whistle-blowing Policy of the Group
to ensure the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting and internal control, etc. were adequate.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are Mr. Shum Sai Chit and Ms. Chi Bi Fen
respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are clearly segregated and are not
exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is
principally responsible for the Group’s corporate planning
and financial management whereas the Chief Executive
Officer is principally responsible for the overall marketing
and sales strategies of the Group’s products.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors are fixed for a
specific term, and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”).

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Company has set up four committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Management
Committee respectively. Each committee is delegated with
specific authorities by the Board in assisting the Board to
discharge its duties and to administer particular aspects
of the Group’s activities. The roles and functions of each
committee are summarized below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Company
has adopted Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee
in compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The
Audit Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man (chairman of the
Audit Committee) and Mr. Cheung Sound Poon.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee is
to provide an independent and professional advice on
financial reporting, to evaluate the effectiveness of internal
control (including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget) and the sufficiency of external and internal
audits of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
After each Audit Committee meeting, the chairman of the
Audit Committee will report to the Board of the significant
issues discussed by the Committee for the Board’s
information and/or consideration.

The Audit Committee has held two meetings (one of which
has invited the auditors of the Company to participate) in
the nine months ended 31 December 2015. The major tasks
accomplished by it during period are summarized below:

e Reviewed the final results for the year ended 31 March
2015 and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2015, and confirmed that the accounting
principles and practices adopted as well as the
disclosures made in such financial statements were
appropriate, accurate and fair;

e FEvaluated and advised on the internal control
procedures and risk management matters;

e Discussed with the auditors on the scope of audit for the
nine months ended 31 December 2015 and approved
the auditors’ remuneration; and

e Reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of the
Group for the nine months ended 31 December 2015.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996.
The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the
Remuneration Committee in compliance with code provision
B.1.2 of the Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
an Executive Director, namely Ms. Chi Bi Fen and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong
Ping Man (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Cheung Sound Poon.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure in relation to remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. It schedules
to meet at least once a year to review and determine the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
senior management and to make recommendation to the
Board of the remuneration of Non-executive Director. In
determining and approving the remuneration of Directors
and senior management of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will take into consideration of various factors
such as market competitiveness, individual performance and
profitability of the Company and its business units.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting in
the nine months ended 31 December 2015 to review the
existing remuneration policies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company, etc.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012.
The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the
Nomination Committee with reference to code provision
A.5.2 of the Code. The Nomination Committee comprises
an Executive Director, namely Mr. Shum Sai Chit (chairman
of the Nomination Committee) and one Independent Non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors, assessing the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and monitoring
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting in the nine
months ended 31 December 2015, together with by means
of written resolutions, to review and deal with the following
major issues:

e Reviewed the qualifications and experiences of
individual Directors as well as their roles and
responsibilities in the Group to ensure the existing
Board structure is fit for the business growth of the
Group; and

e Reviewed the degree of diversity of the existing Board.

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee was established
in 2005 with written terms of reference to operate as a
general management committee under the authority of the
Board. Currently, the Executive Management Committee
comprises two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Shum Sai
Chit (chairman of the Executive Management Committee)
and Ms. Chi Bi Fen.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY SUMMARY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of its Board members. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy and competence, and the candidates will
be considered against certain objective criteria such as
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional qualifications, areas of experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services, etc. The ultimate decision
will be based on merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the nine months ended 31 December 2015, the total
remunerations paid/payable by the Company to its external
auditors in respect of the audit services and non-audit
services are as follows:

FHET
B 7% %8 5l Types of services HK$'000
FENZ RS Audit services 1,530
IEF X RIS Non-audit services 1,280
15 Total 2,810
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs and results. The
Group recorded a consolidated net loss of approximately
HK$20,919,000 (year ended 31 March 2015: approximately
HK$110,517,000) for the nine months ended 31 December
2015.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 39 to 40
of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Since 20 August 2015, Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip has resigned
as the Company Secretary, Mr. Fan Kwok Man, Raymond
has been appointed as the Company Secretary. Mr. Fan
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration in Insurance,
Financial and Actuarial Analysis from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and he is member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over 7 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management
and corporate finance.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Fan has

taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the nine months ended 31 December 2015.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convention of Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
10% of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition to the Company’s registered office. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”).

Putting Forward Proposals at General meetings by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act,
registered Shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal at a general meeting if they:

(a) represent not less than 5% of the total voting rights
of the Company at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b) are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolution(s) should be
duly signed by the registered Shareholder(s) concerned,
accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office. The Company would
take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements.
The Shareholder(s) concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Enquiries from Shareholders

The Board welcomes views, enquires and concerns in relation
to the management and corporate governance of the Group
from Shareholders. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquires and/or concerns to the Board in writing by email
(gsl@gsl.com.hk), by fax ((852) 2802 2697) or by mail to the
principal place of business of the Company for follow up.

For shareholding enquiries, Shareholders may contact the
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company was posted on the websites of the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (“Stock Exchange”) on
20 March 2012 and there is no change in such constitutional
document during the year.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control
of the Group. The system of internal control is designed to
manage and mitigate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives with reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and performing internal
audit. Internal audit reports will be directly sent to the
Audit Committee periodically. A comprehensive policy and
standard governing the process improvement and internal
audit scope and workflow, authority and integrity of the audit
staff, was promulgated in September 2006.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group which covers the
review of risk management functions, financial, operational
and compliance controls, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget, etc.. The Board considered the
internal control system of the Group effective and adequate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhance investor relationship by
increasing its transparency to the investment community.

The following measures have been taken by the Company
to keep investors informed of the latest developments and
news of the Group and to facilitate a two-way communication
between the Company and its Shareholders:

(a) Mailing corporate communication documents such
as interim reports, annual reports and circulars to the
Shareholders periodically and uploading the same on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange;

(b) Publishing announcements through the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

(c) Making available of the Company’s corporate and
products information on its website;

(d) Organizing general meetings to facilitate direct
exchange of views between the Shareholders and the
management of the Company; and

(e) Encouraging investors to communicate with the
Company through the Company’s website from time to
time.

At the Company’s last AGM held on 11 September 2015,
all the resolutions relating to the adoption of financial
statements, re-election of Directors, reappointment of
auditors and grant of general mandates to issue and
repurchase shares have been duly passed. The forthcoming
AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on 17 May
2016 at 10:00 a.m..
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SHUM Sai Chit, age 58, Chairman of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director
of Go Modern Limited which was principally engaged in
manufacturing of textile products and trading activities.
In 1984, Mr. Shum joined Fujian Textiles Import and
Export Corporation as a Manager to oversee importing
and exporting of textile products. Mr. Shum is a graduate
of Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics. Mr. Shum is
currently an executive director of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509).

Ms. CHI Bi Fen, age 57, chief executive officer of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy
General Manager of an electronics equipment company over
17 years. She has an extensive experience in accounting,
taxation and finance in the PRC for more than 15 years.
She is a graduate of Accounting and Finance. Ms. Chi is
currently an executive director of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor MENG Jian, age 59, is a professor and deputy
officer of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource
Utilisation, Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of
Chinese Academy of Science. He is a deputy officer of
Professional Committee of Solid Science and New Materials
of Chinese Society of Rare Earth. He is also a director
of Chinese Society of Rare Earth and Nonferrous Metals
Society of China. He is an expert of the Association of China
Rare Earth Industry and China Magnesium Association.
Professor Meng has been engaging in research and
development of rare earth magnesium alloys and new
materials. He has contributed to the development and
application of rare earth magnesium alloys in China.
Professor Meng majored in semiconducting from Jilin
University, and holds a master's degree from the chemistry
department of Chinese Academy of Science. He holds a
degree of doctor of Engineering from Toyohashi University of
Technology, Japan. Professor Meng is currently a consultant
of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
509) for rare earth magnesium alloys projects.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson JP, aged 52, graduated from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with a
Bachelor degree of Science (Hons), and later was awarded
the degree of Doctor of Philosophy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. In 1992, Dr Tam was awarded the
“Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong” and was named
one of the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons” in 1997. He
was an elected member of Legislative Council of Hong Kong
(Information Technology, 2008-2012) and is now Chairman
of the Hong Kong Business Angel Network, Chairman of
the Hong Kong Industry-University-Research Collaboration
Association, a member of the China Association for Science
and Technology (CAST), Chairman of the Technology
Development Committee of Federation of Hong Kong
Industries (FHKI) and Council Member of The Open
University of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KWONG Ping Man, age 51, is a director of O'Park
Corporate Services Limited which provides corporate
advisory services. Mr. Kwong had served as the chief
financial officer of various companies for almost seven years.
Mr. Kwong has over 15 years of experience in accounting,
finance and administration. He obtained a master’'s degree
in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants, fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
Mr. Kwong had been an independent non-executive director
of Yat Sing Holdings Ltd. (Stock code: 3708) until March
2016. Mr. Kwong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 509), Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1181), Elegance Optical International Holdings Ltd.
(Stock Code: 907) and Clear Lift Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1341).

Mr. CHEUNG Sound Poon, age 55, is currently a senior
audit manager at Chui & Kwok (CPA). He was an audit
senior at Gary W. K. Yam & Co. (CPA). Mr. Cheung has over
35 years of experience in accounting and auditing. He was
an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of audit committee of Century Sunshine Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 509) between February 2004 and May
2007.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, age 54, is responsible for
the overall marketing and sales strategies of the Group’s
products. Mr. Tam has a Diploma in Electronic Engineering
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
over thirty years of experience in marketing electronic
components and consumer electronic products. He received
“Advanced Technology Development Award” of “Capital
Magazine’s Outstanding Information Technology and
Financial Enterprise Awards” in August 2001.

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, age 55, is responsible for OEM/
ODM business in the Strategic Product Division of the
Group. He is the chief executive officer and president of
Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense, a subsidiary of the Group
in Japan. Mr. Otani graduated from the Kansai University
of Foreign Studies in Osaka, Japan with a Bachelor of
Arts in Foreign Languages, and has been working for a
Japanese electronics company for fourteen years before he
joined the Group. He has spent the latter ten years in the
Hong Kong office of this Japanese company since 1987,
being responsible for sales and marketing of electronic
components such as IC, LCD, etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, age 53, has joined the Group since
1988. Mr. Lee is responsible for the personal communication
products business of the Group. He is also responsible for
overseeing the operation of the Information Technology
Department of the Group since September 2013. Mr. Lee
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
Higher Certificate in Electronic Engineering and obtained
a Bachelor’'s degree in Computer Science from Asia
International Open University and a Master of Science’s
degree in Engineering Business Management from the
University of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has thirty years
of experience in electronic product development.

Mr. Yu Sijing, age 71, is the Group’s Chief Engineer for
magnesium products. Mr. Yu joined the Group in 2015,
bringing with him over 30 years of valuable experience
from the magnesium industry. Prior to joining the Group, he
had held positions as Factory Director of Henan Province’s
Huagie Magnesium Industry Technology (% #f & ¥ &
fit), Chief Engineer of Taiyuan Yiwei Magnesium Industry
Co., Ltd. (KRS E#E%727]), Chief Engineer of Sunmag
Industry, DunAn Group (BZ&EK[5#2), and Production
Process Chief Engineer of Magnesium Alloys Company,
Xinjiang Nonferrous Metals Group (128 EE2E£EEAEA
A]). Mr. Yu was appointed as a professional panel member
of the China Magnesium Association in1989, a position he
has held up until today. Mr. Yu graduated from Changsha
Institute of Nonferrous Metals with a Bachelor’'s degree.
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The Board presents their report and the audited financial
statements for the nine months ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are set out in notes 1, 16 and 17 to the financial
statements respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages
6 to 13 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of
this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the nine months ended 31 December
2015 and the Group’s financial position at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 41 to 142.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
period under review and the Board does not recommend
any payment of final dividend to Shareholders for the nine
months ended 31 December 2015. The retention of the loss
of the Group as at 31 December 2015 was approximately
HK$405,780,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the nine months ended 31 December 2015:

(i) The Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for 11% and 40% respectively of
the Group’s total revenue.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 7% and 18% respectively of
the Group’s total purchases (not including purchases of
items which are of capital in nature).

According to the understanding of the Board, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in the
five largest customers or the five largest suppliers.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities, and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 143. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution which was calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
(as amended). In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of approximately HK$601,060,000,
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the period and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Shum Sai Chit (Chairman)
Chi Bi Fen (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:
Professor Meng Jian
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Kwong Ping Man

Cheung Sound Poon

Chen Gang (resigned on 7 March 2016)

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Shum Sai Chit
and Mr. Kwong Ping Man will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man,
Mr. Cheung Sound Poon and Mr. Chen Gang (resigned
on 7 March 2016), an annual confirmation confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Accordingly, the Company considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and
their associates in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

FEEBERROEER (FR)
Number of ordinary shares held (long position)
BARR EEER HE#T
(LEBHEFA RixER (BREZZHE REz
EENA BH5H) (RiB#ER) ®H) am BAL
Personal Family Corporate
interests (held interests  interests (held
as beneficial (interest of by controlled % of issued
Names of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) Total share capital
BER rvat 63,464,000 4,600,000 75,754,236 143,818,236 5.00
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Hi3£ 1) (Note 1) (His£2) (Note 2)

e

1. ZERNESHEERBELIATHAILERERE
SRR 2 51,464,000 B (D -

$.75,754,236 % A% {7 LA Earnmill Holdings
Limited ([Earnmill]) 2 & & &5 » Earnmill &
—Z /i Kiteway Assets Limited ([Kiteway|)
K TTNB Profits Limited ([TTNBJ) 9% 4
Z/AF - W Kiteway &2 TTNB 82 B & 5
BETAFHTNEBEERLEZEHRE °

EEXELRKFHLTREammiIll Z2EE -

HE-Z-—RAF+-A=+—H81t 4AQ
E?ﬁfﬁﬂxf‘ﬁ@%u%z 874,390,058 % ©

Notes:

1. Such shares included the 51,464,000 shares which are jointly owned
by Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

The 75,754,236 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill Holdings
Limited (“Earnmill”), a company which is owned by Kiteway Assets
Limited (“Kiteway”) and TTNB Profits Limited (“TTNB”) in equal shares.
Kiteway and TTNB in turn are wholly owned by Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively.

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP, is also a director of Earnmill.

The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2015 was 2,874,390,058 shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
(long position)

RERZARAREREZEBRYR (FR)
Number of ordinary shares interested or
deemed to be interested (long position)

EARR NAER EHEEE
(UEREBA (BeRiE BRTZRA
EEpE iy a6%HE) EYT 3 #H) ag PA=piN
Corporate
Personal interests % of issued
interests (held (held by share capital
Name of associated as beneficial Family controlled of associated
Names of Directors corporation owner) interests  corporation) Total  corporation
e G EEERERA 26,166,766 — — 26,166,766 0.57%
Shum Sai Chit el (Wit 1) (note 1)
Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited
(“Century Sunshine”)
HEZ gt 31,519,934 — — 31,519,934 0.69%
Chi Bi Fen Century Sunshine (H15#2) (note 2)
BRX 4205 5% 6,389,145 - - 6,389,145 0.14%
Kwong Ping Man Century Sunshine (#1:£3) (note 3)
REA 4205 5% 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.03%
Cheung Sound Poon Century Sunshine (#1i£4) (note 4)
Bat Notes:

(1)

14,666,305 R A2 IS IR bt R £ B
B A & 11,500,461 frtt 42 15 ¢ IR (0 THAR I
Eria 2 B RAE T | Lt R S AR BT 2 ARRAAR
mEE

12,352,499 R &2 B X B AW EF L+ H
B WA 19,167,435 fR t 42 15 ¢ B0 TH AR I
Fiisa 2 BT i 2B S L 81T 2 MR
MEE -

ZE LGS TORIR IS A 2 B R )
R E A BIT 2 R B -

ZE WA B HE 400,000 A& 42 R5 Fe A1) - H
REARSLAEEEHESR - k600,000 425
B BREERERBERES ©

M

14,666,305 shares in Century Sunshine are directly owned by Mr.
Shum Sai Chit and 11,500,461 shares in Century Sunshine are the
number of underlying shares which may be issued to Mr. Shum Sai
Chit under the options held.

12,352,499 shares in Century Sunshine are directly owned by Ms. Chi
Bi Fen and 19,167,435 shares in Century Sunshine are the number of
underlying shares which may be issued to Ms. Chi Bi Fen under the
options held.

These shares in Century Sunshine are the number of underlying
shares which may be issued to Mr. Kwong Ping Man under the options
held.

Such shares include the 400,000 shares in Century Sunshine which
are directly owned by Mr. Cheung Sound Poon and 600,000 shares
in Century Sunshine which are jointly owned by Mr. Cheung and his
spouse.

B (EB)ERAT « 2015 BFHE 35



EFERE(HE)

Report of the Directors (continued)

BEEREHSER(E)
bBr EXFIEEEN  RT— £$+_
AZ+—H SEESIHEHBEAL

TEEEEE$ Al A ERBER T(;E%Eﬁ
w75 MEAEARD) 2 B K AHRARR 17 7
EETTE SEORE

B

RAHEMEERAREZBH - A F]
I SR AR R B A et &l

EEBAROIES 2 EF

ARmHEERMZERAR - BRI R
Al 2 M 8 TE@K,HHWE{EJH%F‘EWE%%VE
HEMZH  BLEFAEBALRR
EAMAAB R Z BB o

EEME

EEMe THARRERARRERNGHE -
HiMe A ARI2RESNRE - B
}ggi‘%fﬁ CUARAREENEERESS
&= E °

R 2 RIER

MERZBE AR ZMERIRIE
NEEPIER ) RBE—_T—hF+ A
=t —HIENEA SR AR -

EENRS  RYEFENzER

RN BEEEIESZZH W ‘“5;%
REMAEBEREB  EER S
Bk & H) (P AR A Z BT AR 2 A
G PNCIEARES N Tﬁ;ﬁ‘iﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁz
AR IR B AN 4 o

BE - HERIWEAATZ LH
%

ARBIREEAHRBRARARBE —_F
—HFET-A=t—RIEAEARHRE
BE HEXBEEARRMERMLHES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors or their associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in
the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has not adopted any share option scheme
during the period and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the period was the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the nine months ended 31 December 2015, a
permitted indemnity provision as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance was in force for an indemnity against
liability incurred by the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Directors nor a connected entity of Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which any of the Company’s
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the nine months ended 31 December 2015.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2015,

the register of substantial

shareholders kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO shows that other than the interests disclosed

ERRAMAELE - TIRREAE above in respect of certain Directors, the following
NAEBARB S BITIRAP B A Shareholder had notified the Company of relevant interests
KB and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company:
s @R HE BT
REREH RGHEE (HFR) BAZED L
Number of ordinary
shares held % of issued

Name of Shareholder

(long position) share capital

Ming Xin Developments Limited (#/z# 1) (note 1) 1,491,197 ,454 51.88

New Bright Group Limited (#7:#2) (note 2) 1,491,197,454 51.88

RS EEIERER AR (AL 3) 1,491,197 454 51.88
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (note 3)

X = (Hat4) 1,491,197,454 51.88
Chi Wen Fu (note 4)

BREEMNZS) 145,218,236 5.05
Tam Wai Tong (note 5)

WREHite) 143,818,236 5.00
Mui Kai Wai (note 6)

BER(HT6) 143,818,236 5.00

Tam Wai Ho (note 6)
Hiat -

(1)

(2)

1,491,197 454 1 Ming Xin Developments
Limited B A ©

Ming Xin Developments Limit d7%New
Bright Group Limitedz 2 & Wi B 2 & °
A ?ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ‘éﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ%’ New
Bright Group Limited ##8 &% & Ming Xin
givelopments Limited ¥ & # 2 2 2 2B 1

New Bright Group Limited Att425 %22
BHEAR - #L - BEFRBEROIME
42 F5 Y 148 A ¥ A Ming Xin Developments
Limited B & # % 2 28RN 2 #% ©

5@?%?&95&@%55%%(Mingxm

Developments Limited Z & 4328 A 7)) R 5

RELESI=9 2 — A ERRAE - Ut - 5t

BERBEGRAMES  OXEEERRAES

Mlng Xin Developments Limited # A& %5 2
2R 2 A

Note:

(M

2)

(5) %Z%H%ﬁ@%:(i)mﬁﬁﬁf‘ﬁi& ERxE (5)
+ HF A 2 51,464,000 A% i (5 -(u).ﬁ1 ®

S EH %A 2 18,000,000 BLA% 1 ¢ K (iii
75,754,236 % B3 Earnmill (— R B 8@ 240 A4
MEEZEBLIEARLISGRE2EREGZA
ANEmHEE °

*“1 SEL7RER EXEEHE 2ESFE

@ PIREEER - BlEREL L AEBERESE
ToBE  SUREES MR IMW%XV%B ’
EEESLTREARERTELMES 2K
s E S o

1,491,197,454 shares are beneficially owned by Ming Xin
Developments Limited;

Ming Xin Developments Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of New
Bright Group Limited. As such, New Bright Group Limited is deemed
to be interested in all the shares in which Ming Xin Developments is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

New Bright Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Century
Sunshine. As such, Century Sunshine is deemed to be interested in all
the shares in which Ming Xin Developments is interested by virtue of
the SFO

Mr. Chi Wen Fu controls more than one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Century Sunshine (the ultimate holding
company of Ming Xin Developments Limited). As such, Mr. Chi Wen
Fu is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Ming Xin
Developments Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Such shares include: (i) the 51,464,000 shares which are jointly
owned by Mr. Tam Wai Tong and Dr. Tam Wai Ho; (ii) Mr. Tam Wai
Tong directly owns 18,000,000 Shares; and (iii) 75,754,236 shares are
beneficially owned by Earnmill, a company which is ultimately wholly
owned by Mr. Tam Wai Tong and Dr. Tam Wai Ho, in equal shares.

The shareholding of Dr. Tam Wai Ho is also included in the “Directors’
Interests in Securities” disclosed above. Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai is
the spouse of Dr. Tam Wai Ho and therefore Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai
is deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Dr. Tam Wai Ho
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the
Company had not been notified by any persons who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Other than those disclosed in Note 40 to the financial
statements, there was no connected transaction during
the period and in prior year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, as at the latest practical date
prior to the printing of this report.

AUDITORS

There has been no change in the auditors of the
Company during the past three years. Ernst & Young will
retire and the Company will propose a resolution at its
forthcoming AGM to reappoint Ernst & Young as auditors
of the Company.

By order of the Board

Mr. Shum Sai Chit
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 March 2016
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To the shareholders of Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 41 to 142, which comprise
the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the period from 1 April 2015 to
31 December 2015, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the period from 1
April 2015 to 31 December 2015 in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other,Comprehensive Income
ZE-RFMA—RAEZE—AFTZH=1—HHM Period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015

—B-IF
MA—-HZ BE
—E-FF —E-RE
+=A=+-R =A=1-A
i) HFE
Period from
1 April 2015
to 31 Year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
Uik TER FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
WA REVENUE 5 139,537 223,933
SHE B Cost of sales (104,215) (180,176)
ESA Gross profit 35,322 43,757
Hip W A Rz - 58 Other income and gains, net 5 18,714 11,896
HE R X Selling and distribution expenses (17,811) (34,378)
THx Administrative expenses (41,021) (71,203)
o RFE Research and development expenses (16,141) (30,567)
& 5 Other operating expenses, net (180) (30,040)
BERA Finance costs 7 (934) (998)
FE1E RN BB Share of profits and losses of:
N-WNE] Joint ventures 1,136 1,029
/N Associate (4) —
BAEER LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (20,919) (110,504)
ST s it Income tax expense 10 — (13)
XHE/ FEFE LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR (20,919) (110,517)
Hitt2HEEA OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEBNRENDEEEEN Other comprehensive income to be
HiZ2EBA : reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
WEBIER ERER Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (7,971) (1,228)
XM,/ FE2EHELE  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE
PERIOD/YEAR (28,890) (111,745)
EaARE/FEEE Loss for the period/year attributable to:
AR RIBER B A Equity holders of the Company (20,916) (107,460)
el £ Non-controlling interests (3) (3,057)
(20,919) (110,517)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued)
Z—E-RAFMA-HEZE—RF+=A=+—HEHM Period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015

—2-0%
mA—-RZE BZE
—E-EF —T-hEF
+=ZR=+—H =RA=+—H
il IEFE

Period from

1 April 2015
to 31 Year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
Pt TER FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

EEAEE/ FE2EER Total comprehensive loss for the period/
1B year attributable to:
ARRIRERE A Equity holders of the Company (29,198) (108,688)
el £ Non-controlling interests 308 (3,057)
(28,890) (111,745)
ARREBREREARL LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO (& E751)
BRER ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE (Restated)
COMPANY

BN Basic 12 (HK1.03 cents #{li) (HK6.75 cents &)
%5 Diluted 12 (HK1.03 cents#{l) (HK6.75 cents (L)
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REMBRAE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E—hF=HA=1+—H 31 December 2015

—E-hF “E—RF
+=A=+—-B =A=+—H

31 December 31 March
2015 2015
LiEzs FTHERT FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - BE NG Property, plant and equipment 13 313,508 128,465
TEfT T AH EFRER Prepaid land lease payments 14 45,668 16,176
ERER KA Deferred development costs 15 756 1,135
BERBIZIEE Investments in joint ventures 16 4,290 3,363
B NRZIRE Investment in an associate 17 18 22
AMEHERE Available-for-sale investments 18 7,300 7,300
RHZS Long term deposits 19 10,688 55
ERENE EBTE Total non-current assets 382,228 156,516
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 20 58,590 35,531
JEWE 5 R Trade receivables 21 20,300 21,121
TEREIE - Be Rk Prepayments, deposits and
A & W AR X other receivables 22 14,264 12,063
Y& & A RIBRK Amounts due from a joint venture 16 885 1,201
AR EF 5K Tax recoverable 1,826 —
[ EPER /N Pledged deposits 23 488 1,012
ReMRESEMEER Cash and cash equivalents 23 375,161 112,052
MENE EE AR Total current assets 471,514 182,980
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JERTE Z R Trade payables 24 54,431 18,053
EENRXREFAE  Other payables and accruals 25 153,998 38,124
MEIRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 26 68,927 27,781
R Provision 27 945 1,667
JEft—HIB AR —3E#EH  Due to a non-controlling shareholder
IR R AR K of a subsidiary 28 — 2,002
FEAT AR R Tax payable 123 129
MENE BERE Total current liabilities 278,424 87,756
MEEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 193,090 95,224
BEMLBERLBAR Total assets less current liabilities 575,318 251,740
FRBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
—(REER Loan from a shareholder 29 110,000 42,000
BEFRE Net assets 465,318 209,740
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FEEMBERAR(E)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

ZZT—h%F=HA=4—H 31 December 2015

—E-HF —ZE-AF
+=A=+-B =A=1-F
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
Bt & FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
% R EQUITY
EATREFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
LR fE of the Company
BEEITRAR Issued capital 31 287,439 143,719
e Reserves 32 184,142 72,592
471,581 216,311
IR Non-controlling interests (6,263) (6,571)
IR A R Total equity 465,318 209,740
MEREEE MmER L+
Mr. Shum Sai Chit Ms. Chi Bi Fen
o EF
Director Director
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FeHaEnX

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
—E-RAFWNA—HE_ZT—RFE+ A =+—HHIM Period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015

KAARESEARE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRARA  REGER SAEERE  RHBRE  RMER ENRERR  EER &t FERER  REsE
Share Capital Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium  redemption Special Other  fluctuation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital account'  reserve’  reseve'  reserve’  reserve losses* Total  interests equity
[iF: T T T T T Tin T T Thn Tin
Note HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS000  HK$000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§000  HK$000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
(HiE32)
(note 32)
AZE-WERA-A A1 A 2014 119,766 409,710 49 (60,819) 51 53596  (277.404) 250,509 (3579) 246,930
EREE Loss for the year - - - - - - (107460) (107 460) (3067)  (110517)
ERAMRERE: Other comprehensive loss for
the year:
Vet S v Exchange differences on
EizE translaton of foreign
operations - - - - - (1.228) - (1,228) - (1.228)
ERREEREE Total comprehensive loss for
the year - - - - - (1228)  (107.460)  (108688) (3067)  (11,745)
WEsaREs Acquisiton of non-controling
interests - - - - (69) - - (65) 65 -
ik Issue of shares ] 23963 52697 - - - - - 76,650 - 76,650
Ri%ARR Share issue expenses 3 - (2,099) - - - - = (2,095) - (2,095)
RIB-BE=R=T-B A3 March 2016
R=E-1£RmA-A and 1 April 2015 143719 460,312 49 (60819) 5176 52,368 (364,864) 216,311 (6571) 209,740
HHEE Loss for the period - - = = = = (20916)  (20916) 3 (20919
BHARRERE: Other comprehensive loss for
the period:
fEaNEHL Exchange differences on
EiZE translation of foreign
Operations - - - - - (8.262) - (8,262) 31 (1971)
dHmEReE Total comprenensive logs for
the period - - - - - (8,282) (20,916) (29,19) 308 (28,890)
Lfki Issue of sheres 3 143720 143719 - - - - - 27439 - 287439
OEGI Share issue expenses 3 - (2971) - - - - - (2971) - (2971)
RZB-RETZA=1—A A 31 December 2015 2743 601,060 49 (60,819) 5,176 44086 (405780) 471581 (6.263) 465,318

* HEHREREERGEUMBRRARZEARE
184,142,000 (B EZE-_ZT—HF = A
=+—HIFE : 72,592,000 7T) °

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$184,142,000 (Year ended 31 March 2015: HK$72,592,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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FEBeRiER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ZE-RFMA—RAEZE—AFTZH=1—HHIM Period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015

—EB-HE
MA—RZE BE
—F-1f i
+=ZB=+-B =A=+—H
i) HFE
Period from
1 April 2015
to 31 Year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
FiE TERT FAEL
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
KEXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
HAIEE Loss before tax (20,919) (110,504)
HE Adjustments for:

AR Finance costs 7 934 998

155 B R Rl Share of profits of joint ventures (1,136) (1,029)

[EfL—EE AR EE Share of losses of an associate 4 -

SRITH A Bank interest income 5 (65) (89)

HENE - BFEREE Gain on disposal of items of property, plant

BB 2 W and equipment 5 (5) (2)
ik Depreciation 6 7,117 10,908
B LB E R R Recognition of prepaid land lease

payments 6 393 493
i A B P AN 8 Amortisation of deferred development

costs 6 428 571
BB ARIE Impairment of deferred development costs 6 237 362
AHEERERE Impairment of available-for-sale

investments 6 - 14,755

T ERE Provision of slow moving inventories 6 1,986 13,679

[EUE S ERXCRERR),/ (Reversal of impairment)/impairment of

BB R trade receivables, net 6 (23) 4,064
HiEWRERZORE - F58 Impairment of other receivables, net 6 - 6,543
REARRERE Impairment of an investment in a joint

venture 6 180 6,500
JEU — Bt A B AR FRR (B Impairment of an amount due from an
associate 6 - 7,225

B 225 1 B Wt Provisional gain on bargain purchase 6 (7,182) -

HE—AHHERE Loss on disposal of an available-for-sale

EiB investment 6 - 6
HEMRBAR Y Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 5 (179) (280)

(17,630) (45,800)
FELEN Increase in inventories (22,210) (2,414)
e E FERFR D Decrease in trade receivables 5,042 17,875
BNTIA - e MAMER (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

HIBOGEM) R deposits and other receivables (1,617) 7,982
REmeEm Increase in long-term deposits 3) (3)
kA EDRTERLD,/ Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from

(2m) joint ventures 345 (803)
BB SEZIEM/ CRd) Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 2,153 (22,085)
Hit B RAME R Increase in other payables and accruals

el 1,508 3,419
EmREBECRD), /1m (Decrease)/increase in provision for product

warranties (722) 132
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ReERERER(E)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
ZE-RAFMA-—HBEZFE—RF+=A=+—HEHM Period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015

—2-EF
MA—-BE BE
—F-1f —T-IF
+=ZB=+-B =A=+—H
il HFE
Period from
1 April 2015
to 31 Year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
Uik TEx BT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
REZXBHEACEE Cash used in operations (33,134) (41,697)
EfEIMIIA Overseas taxes paid - (14)
REEBFERIBEREFE  Net cash flows used in operating activities (33,134) (41,711)
REXKZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
FERA Interest received 65 89
BAYE  BERREER Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment 13 (1,059) (6,330)
HEWME  MEKRREEB 2  Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

FriS5R plant and equipment 5 38
HE—AHHEREZE Proceeds from disposal of an available-for-

A sale investment - 9,138
HENB AR 2 ETIE Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries 35 4 (176)
12 ANGERRE 2 BK AR Additions to deferred development costs 15 (286) (1,566)
mEBWE—MBLRREME 2  Advance of loans to a company subsequently

B acquired as subsidiary (45,116) -
BAYE BENRZEEBRZ Increase in long term deposits for purchases

REES LM of items of property,

plant and equipment (10,630) -
TEENESE N Increase in time deposits (230,000) -
WE—HEAE Acquisition of a subsidiary 34 428 -
REEB2BLRE) /WA Net cash flows (used in)/from

HE investing activities (286,589) 1,193

REXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

BIIRMFEHIR Proceeds from issue of shares 287,439 76,650
B EITR X Share issue expenses (2,971) (2,095)
AR Finance costs (934) (998)
AIBIRITE R New bank loans 30,830 27,781
BEBITER Repayment of bank loans (27,781) (23,814)
—RRREFEM Increase in shareholder’s loan 68,000 42,000
JERT—PHBA B —FFEHIAER  Decrease in an amount due to a non-

REUR A controlling shareholder of a subsidiary (2,002) -
MEEB RS RNFE Net cash flows from financing activities 352,581 119,524
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RERERER(E)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
—E-REMA—BE=

T—FF+ - F=+—HHIA Period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015

“E-AfF
MA—RZE BE
—E-RF —E-RF
+=ZB=+-B =A=+—H
i) HFE
Period from
1 April 2015
to 31 Year ended
December 31 March
2015 2015
FiE TERT FAEL
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BEeRBELEEER 2EM NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
FE EQUIVALENTS 32,858 79,006
8/ FNzRe kAL EE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
BH period/year 113,064 34,497
SNEERBEEE - Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (273) (439)
B/ FRZASRRLEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
A AT END OF PERIOD/YEAR 145,649 113,064
ReRFLSEEALEHIM  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be RiRTHER Cash and bank balances 23 125,161 112,052
FERTEHRFER Non-pledged time deposits 23 250,000 -
AR EIELHE  Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
&i ®%EEA consolidated statement of financial position 375,161 112,052
BARFELR=AARZ Time deposits with original maturity of less
ZEHHTTA R ARITER three months when acquired, pledged as
HH security for a bank loan 23 488 1,012
BARABB=EAZM2IE Non-pledged time deposits with original
BIRE BTN maturity of more than three months when
acquired (230,000) -
REEABRERERYEKZESE Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
ER&FEEE consolidated statement of cash flows 145,649 113,064
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Notes to Financial Statements
—E—hF+-A=+—H 31 December 2015

1. AEREEER

)ﬁﬁEﬂﬁT(FZﬁ’AﬁTJ)%

—HMREREFMARLZBRA
KRB ZEELEHBN BA%-?/ f%
T%E/a 18 2557 /88 F ) 26 12 2606A

RAHEAR XEBZEXBIR
RET RER fﬁ’%, TﬁFaxﬁiﬁ
(TODMDEmM > ETHHAEmMR * &
NBHE m ?%1#%%* i R B

L&fﬁ%fﬁ E X HRAE M

RESCZER » AR 2 HZER

J'L/‘\

AIRNEBREAESHEMALZA
Ming Xin Development Limited
MEREIZER AR AN RBRE XS
sE AKX 32 A ] Alpha Sino Limited °

RRFZEEZWMBRRZFBAT ¢

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located
at Unit 2606A, 26/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the design,
manufacture and sale of original design manufacturing
products (“ODM products”), electronic dictionary
products and personal communication products, the
provision of electronic manufacturing services and the
manufacture and sale of magnesium related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Ming Xin Development
Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands
and the ultimate holding company is Alpha Sino Limited,
a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
as follows:

H3T A BROEER/ APAELERE
A% RS HERRAEE ZBAH FEXK
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary Percentage of
registration and share/registered equity attributable  Principal
Name business capital to the Company activities
B A
Direct Indirect
RERDENETF hEE AR HAAE 65,000,000 /87T - 100 SERHE
BRARY (@), BfEmM
RE A
Global Asia High-tech The People’s HK$65,000,000 Manufacture
Electronics Co., Ltd."* Republic of China and trading
("PRC”)/Mainland of electronic
China products
Group Sense (Holding) EBRTEHE 3,000% T - 100 ®EER
Limited*
British Virgin US$3,000 Investment holding
Islands (“BVI")
Group Sense (S.EA.) Limited* HBEZEHS 1%7T 100 - REZK
BVI US$1 Investment Holding
Group Sense Investment EBRTEHE IE 100 - REEK
Limited*
BVI US$1 Investment Holding
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZT—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

1.

NAIREBER(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
SR, ERTEER/ ARAEERE
f% TR A& i B AMRAEE ZBAH FEXK
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary Percentage of
registration and share/registered equity attributable  Principal
Name business capital to the Company activities
E# A
Direct Indirect
BEARRDA &R AR 1,000 T - 100 R RHEE
BEREEFS BfEmM
REETR R
200,000 %7z ?
Group Sense Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Design and trading
HK$1,000 of electronic
Non-voting 5% products
deferred shares
HK$200,000?
BEREBR AT BE 28T - 100 REHER
Group Sense Manufactory Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Company Limited
EEBHRRAR AT BB 28T - 100 Rt RHEE
BfEmM
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Hong Kong HK$2 Design and trading
Limited of electronic
products
1B PDARIRABR A FEHS LR 2,115,837 T - 9895 BREER
ABERR
17,182 % 7T
Group Sense PDA Holdings Cayman Islands Ordinary shares Investment holding
Limited US$2,115,837
Series A preferred
shares US$17,182
BEZ LERER AR BB 10078 7T - 100  RAREE
BYEmM
Group Sense PDA Limited Hong Kong HK$100 Design and trading
of electronic
products
BEGAMR(BR)BERRAR &R 1007%7T - 100 REZER
Group Sense Software Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding

Technology (Hong Kong)
Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZT—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

1. RAEAREEER(E)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

S, ERTEER/ ARAELRE
£ TR HEMRAEE ZBDH FEXK
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary Percentage of
registration and share/registered equity attributable  Principal
Name business capital to the Company activities
B A
Direct Indirect
AT LTV A BA 60,000,000 A - 100  REtRHEE
BTER
Kabushiki Kaisha Group Japan JPY60,000,000 Design and trading
Sense* of electronic
products
Supreme Style Technology EBERTHE 100% T - 100 ®REER
Limited*
BVI US$100 Investment holding
ERPAABRARRERAF  FE/ HENM AR 25,500,000 7 - 51 RE®H
(AR O (ZZ-1#F REARERS
=A=t—R”:
AR ¥ 50,000,0007T)
PRC/Mainland RMB25,500,000 Provision of
China (31 March 2015: software and
RMB50,000,000) information
technology
services
BNBERRERAT e/ B ARH 24,500,000 7T - 51 REHRLH
(TBMBZ]) & REARERS
PRC/Mainland RMB24,500,000 Provision of
China software and
information
technology
services
BEFMHERREBRRA BB 18T - 100  REER
Hong Kong New Materials Hong Kong HK$1 Investment Holding
Industry Investments Limited
MERMENRERAA B/ BN AR¥ 171,800,000 7 - 100 BERHEE
([FEkEm]) > FHEBER
Xinjiang Tengxiang Magnesium PRC/Mainland RMB171,800,000 Manufacture
Products Company Limited China and trading

(FEEARHmBRAR)"
(“XTMP”)

of magnesium
related products
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZT—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

ARAREEER(E)

GEX
(1) 2HERA

(2) EIERR ) I A AR S SR A 5
ARBEABRRRE 28BS R FER
PRAGRAAE LIRRZER - TE
REFRFB2EEMDIR

(3) MBIz HFIMEERE

Y OREEEB KR TR R AT SR A % Kk
BET B ER AR B T E X

RAEREA - NEER—BILE=T7
Wissrem ARG mARAR 228
e - BRALWE 2 E—PFBEER
BITE 3R PRE 34

ERFINEERREAEE 2 AHE
FEAEATESEANAEBEES
B2 EBHN 2 ARABMBAR - B
SRR REEMHB QR ZFES
BHEMBRILE -

mAEEXE

MBmMEDBBE B ASHEM
BBV BEREEZ ([ BBV BRE
R D(ENMBEREESVBRE
£A EHEFEA([EE@HE
BlJJ)&u%%%) E L\nuan—l_}?glj&
BEBENREHIMREREMAER o B
BEm&RIEREEKINERE - RS
BRI - FRESEBAETIIE @ I
ARERERETT -

AEBZHBEEZ#EAR EEHEH
=t+—HEAT_-_A=1—

PABC & 2 B # 2 ik 2 @] Ming Xm
Development Limited Z & & H o /&
aﬁﬁ#ﬁ?ﬁ E-T-—HAFMHA—HE
—E-RF+ZA=+—HZNEAR
HHF'? o Wil - fREEm & HMEEI
mik o AR FER RAEEN T2
LR BRI TR A AR B L& o

]]]

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Notes:
(1)  Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

(2) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of
the company or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

(8) Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

During the period, the Group acquired the entire interest
in Xinjiang Tengxiang Magnesium Products Company
Limited from an independent third party. Further details
of this acquisition are included in notes 34 to the
financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the period or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The financial year end date of the Group has been
changed from 31 March to 31 December to conform
to that of its immediate holding company, Ming
Xin Development Limited. The financial statements
presented cover a period of nine months from 1
April 2015 to 31 December 2015. Consequently, the
comparative amounts for the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and related
notes are not directly comparable with those of the
current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZT—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

21 mBEE(E) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

NG R ERERBIERAQ R REN B
AR(SBIAEE)R=_ZT—1F
WMA—BZ_FT—hA&+_A=+—
AER 5 HRE - BARALA
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The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the period
from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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1RBBE(E) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
for the first time for the current period’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of each amendment is
described below:

(a) Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions
from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendments simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of
years of employee service, for example, employee
contributions that are calculated according to a
fixed percentage of salary. If the amount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years
of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction of service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Group does not have defined benefit plans.

(b) The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments
that are effective for the current year are as follows:

e HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that
an entity must disclose the judgements made
by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief description
of operating segments that have been
aggregated and the economic characteristics
used to assess whether the segments are
similar. The amendments also clarify that
a reconciliation of segment assets to total
assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating
decision maker. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies
the treatment of gross carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation or amortisation of
revalued items of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets. The amendments have
had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not apply the revaluation model for the
measurement of these assets.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies
that a management entity (i.e., an entity that
provides key management personnel services)
is a related party subject to related party
disclosure requirements. In addition, an entity
that uses a management entity is required to
disclose the expenses incurred for management
services. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group as the Group does not receive any
management services from other entities.

(c) The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments
that are effective for the current period are as
follows:

B6 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that
joint arrangements but not joint ventures are
outside the scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope
exception applies only to the accounting in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself. The amendment is applied prospectively.
The amendment has had no impact on
the Group as the Company is not a joint
arrangement and the Group did not form any
joint arrangement during the year.
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22 BBRRME 2508 (F)

(c) (&) (c) (continued)
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applied not only to financial assets and financial
liabilities, but also to other contracts within the
scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as applicable.
The amendment is applied prospectively from
the beginning of the annual period in which
HKFRS 13 was initially applied. The amendment
has had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not apply the portfolio exception in HKFRS
13.

HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that
HKFRS 3, instead of the description of ancillary
services in HKAS 40 which differentiates
between investment property and owner-
occupied property, is used to determine if
the transaction is a purchase of an asset or
a business combination. The amendment
is applied prospectively for acquisitions of
investment properties. The amendment has had
no impact on the Group as the Group does not
have investment properties during the period.

In addition, the Company has adopted the
amendments to the Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange relating to the
disclosure of financial information with reference to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
during the current financial period. The main impact
to the financial statements is on the presentation
and disclosure of certain information in the financial
statements.
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23CEMEMKREMNE B 2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

HZER KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
INEE B 1 4 B 53 L B 15 TR R B 18] R R The Group has not applied the following new and
FA T I B 0B i R A R 3 i 5T A revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
KT E BT B mELEL - effective, in these financial statements.

EAUMBREEAZOR 2HIAS HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
BAMBREENFI0ORR KEZEEBER T Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
EEQHERFEREEL] HLEPEZEE HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
ANZB—%F) HEZTE Venture®
BAMBREEANE0R . KEFE: FoAk Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
BRUBREEANZ 2% ANERZES HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)  Consolidation Exception’
REBGHERE 285%E
HE
BRUBREENENRE AELALERY Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
HE Erip in Joint Operations'
BERBRELANS 4R EEECEE’ HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
BERBREENESR KEEFANMNE’ HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’
BAGHENE1RETR ZHRE Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
BRI ENE16RRER HUESHTERE Amendments to HKAS 16 and ~ Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
SHEBIEBREIR  HEMEE HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’
BEGHENS16RREE BE: LELEY Amendments to HKAS 16 and ~ Agriculture: Bearer Plants’
EHR AR AZHE HKAS 41
BEQHENE2TRBIR BUuiFhznEs Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)  Equity Method in Separate Financial
(Z2——F) Erip Statements’
“E-CRRCE-NERE HEEEAHEEE Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'
BNFERE BRI EEET 2012-2014 Cycle
! R-ZE—RNF—A—H=Z2RBHIBZF ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
S HAR £
2 RZZE—N\F—A—BszERBZF 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
EHARI A
¢ HEAXRBAEBYBREEN ZEER 8 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual
—E—RNE— A BREELHBRZEE financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
BIEHRR AR N ERRAERE therefore is not applicable to the Group
¢ HAREE TR EI AR B - B2 AT R4 ¢ No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption
TEER E AR AN EE NSRBI Further information about those HKFRSs that are
WEERRE—FSERT expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:
RZE—NFNA FESAE In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
MHEE BT BRELEDE IFHHRR version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
A - ¥4t T EIEAMTEEERSE financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
R—BUAREEB 4R FE 395 previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
REBMGHREEREIOFH DI new requirements for classification and measurement,
AR o 52 ZER5| ADFENETE & impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
BEREFPSETRIENITRE - A5E to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
BHEZZ—N\F— A —HBHERXENE currently assessing the impact of the standard.

B BHREERFE I - N&EBE H Al
THEHMEZERNTE -
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’'s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in HKFRS
3. The amendments also clarify that a previously held
interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the
acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition,
a scope exclusion has been added to HKFRS 11 to
specify that the amendments do not apply when the
parties sharing joint control, including the reporting
entity, are under common control of the same ultimate
controlling party. The amendments apply to both the
acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and
the acquisition of any additional interests in the same
joint operation. The amendments are not expected to
have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In September 2015, the
HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding
a one-year deferral of the mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 15 to 1 January 2018. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(ii) that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2016. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated
from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very
limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not
used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

24ERETHERME(E)

REBEERARARESERAZERE Investments in associates and joint ventures
(&) (continued)

REERBERAIREGERAIZEK The Group’s investments in associate and joint ventures
& TIAREEE Bﬂiﬁlﬁﬂﬁ are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
ZEEFEREEMARERERZR 5 position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
RERE AR A © equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.

AEFERGBERTREEARZK The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and

B X kA2 B D Bllar AkR
BEmRNMEAEMEEKENA © It
Sh - BEHEEMERRRNEE QAN
BT EREDE  ARESERS

R E R AERAEEENERED
(ER) - AEBEEBZRRHE
BRAETRSMEBRNRERIES
SEMEEE  SEUASERBZER
AAERRNKE QR - BIRAK
EREEEAMEREERLRER
RN - BB E RRISAE RRIEL
Zﬁﬁ@%E$El#%§“TiA

REIZTENR -

MRNBERRZREZERNAER
72&%(&27?‘%) IR E%ﬁ
AAEREER - MMRZ EZIE} &
A%'ﬁi:ﬁﬁ@%\ ERE o A EM
ERT  AEBITBHBERRAE
ﬁ,g/’i“ﬁiﬁ/\iéf 71 k1

- AEESRHE R FERFE MER
ET—H% RIRE - BE RRIHEERA]
NG NEWN-Z- e ke 3y
FESBEMREBRENQATFERDE
EMERAME ZANENERSE
*E\ EPEED/L,\O

R—EERAIHAE R A ZILEHT
ERERER  DREAMBREE
SR FEHTEEERER
LAREEENER ©

other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or
joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties,
derivative financial instruments and equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit and
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, (only if there are revalued assets in the financial
statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease
buildings terms or 3%

Leasehold improvements 25%

Furniture, fixtures and

equipment 3% to 25%
Plant and machinery 10% to 25%
Tooling and moulds 50%

Motor vehicles 15% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

B (EER)ARADAF « 2015 BF®/RE 69



A %5 80 R BH&E (4R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZT—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

2QABEREHHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

W% BMERRBRITE(E)

ME  BELREHEABEEERY
R SR TR B &R (M ek B &%
0 A NS E SRR o A5 AR LR
R NEERILER ZFREEERDN
HERRH) B SR IERER 2 (T8 A
TROEMSFIRFREEHEER
E{E 2 Z8H -

R TR EPOEFTIRAARIE
R ER RS BR M TMEFTE - ANE
REETREREBERR 2 ERKA R
BIMEEEMBERA - EETRER
BRI HERKEROBEDE -
B K estm 2 BERRR o

BEEE(TREHE)
ERMENENEERVARRRE
AAFE ° AT ISHETLE
ENRAEEGEREBMNAFE- &
WEEZERFHRAERBRIE
R FHAERELEERRIZAE
AERANEE T EESAPRA
RNEVEERRELIREE - FHER
ZEEE 2 BEHFHNEIEAE
DPREFREFRERBET—IK o

AERAERFHNETVEESFS
& Bl Sk AE 3R & 2 A B A B (R IR (B A
A REBREEL T T AME - &
ERFHNELEENRERFEHAR
BEIEHE - AT ER A /B FH
HRF AR DR R 5 o W B 5
AT {58 P 4 B R ¥4 B IR B IR R
FHENSBRFH -

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products of three years, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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POLICIES (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss
in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is
no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings,
an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, and a shareholder’s loan.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined either on first-in,
first-out basis or weighted average method and, in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associate and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

B (EER)ARARF » 2015 BFHRE 81



A %5 80 R BH&E (4R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

“E—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

24EXRETHERBME(E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2QABEREHTHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
RIkEstE Pension schemes
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant
amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

B (ER)ARAT « 2015 BFHE 83



A %5 80 R BH&E (4R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZT—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

24ERETHERBE(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2QABEREHTHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

I (48 ) Foreign currencies (continued)
ETHIMBRGE - 6BERE KEE The functional currencies of certain overseas
NAIZINE B BB T AINE subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are currencies

MEPR - WFEXZAERBIR]

TR TR

Z other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
HERERCEERERARRRIZE the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
HWEE  mMESEEZBREAEA these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
ZINBEFEEERBE BATT - at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the

reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

FES 2 BN ZET ARMEEKE The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
&%ufﬁ/\l:ﬁ&@ﬁﬁ HEFINME other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
X RERPEREZAEREINE exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
BEBE2 HmE2mEmB A D operation, the component of other comprehensive

income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

EWER BN ETSFTE A2 LU iE Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
FELENHEEREERESERA operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
TEABRNABRERBINEBNEE amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
MEE - WARRIRERFH - are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
MEEBHERERME  BINEBA For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
AIREERRIZRERETINRER flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and joint
FHEERACEXBRERETT - B ventures are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
MBARIREERINAFARNEELZ exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
LEUReREUARNFER Z INEFH Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
PE R E AT o and joint ventures which arise throughout the year

are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

3. EEGFM&EE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
EINAREEVERREEEIEE L The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
TEFEBERA X  BENAE requires management to make judgements, estimates
ZEREHE  HERBELRIABEZ and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
FIE - (5T MRER o LSRR N&IEET of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
T EFREARLERFTEHREKT their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
TEEESBBZREEELERSR of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
K o assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes

that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
A change in the estimated future cash flows and/or the
discount rate applied will result in an adjustment to the
estimated impairment provision previously made. The
carrying amount of goodwill included in investments in
joint ventures at 31 December 2015 was Nil (31 March
2015: HK$168,000).

Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment
and available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost
Management estimates the recoverable amounts of
items of property, plant and equipment and available-
for-sale investments carried at cost when an indication
of impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. At 31 December 2015, impairment losses of
HK$25,380,000 (31 March 2015: HK$25,380,000) have
been recognised for available-for-sale assets carried
at cost. The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and available-for-sale assets carried at cost
as at 31 December 2015 were HK$313,508,000 (31
March 2015: HK$128,465,000) and HK$7,300,000 (31
March 2015: HK$7,300,000), respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated
loss arising from the inability of its customers to make
the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances,
customers’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of its customers
was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis of making the allowance and
its future results would be affected. At 31 December
2015, impairment losses of HK$16,785,000 (31 March
2015: HK$17,765,000) have been recognised for trade
receivables. The carrying amount of trade receivables
was HK$20,300,000 (31 March 2015: HK$21,121,000).

Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to three years on
certain products and undertakes to repair or replace
items that fail to perform satisfactorily. Significant
judgement is required when determining the warranty
expenses. The Group estimates the warranty expenses
based on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 36 months.
Where the warranty expenses incurred are different
from the original provision, the difference would impact
on profit or loss in the period in which the additional
warranty expenses are incurred. The carrying amount
of warranty provision was HK$945,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$1,667,000).

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
these transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements. Determining
the amounts to be capitalised requires management to
make assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be applied
and the expected period of benefits. At 31 December
2015, the best estimate of the carrying amount of
capitalised development costs was HK$756,000 (31
March 2015: HK$1,135,000).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services
and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the magnesium products segment manufactures
and sales of magnesium-related products;

(b) the personal communication products segment
designs, manufactures and sells a range of
communications products;

(c) the strategic products segment designs,
manufactures and sells ODM products and
electronic dictionary products and provides
electronic manufacturing services; and

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises
corporate income, expenses, asset and liability
items related to the Group’s investment activities.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s loss before tax except that
interest income, finance costs, dividend income as well
as head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in joint ventures,
available-for-sale investments, amounts due from
an associate and a joint venture, pledged deposits,
cash and cash equwalents, tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings, an amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, a loan from a shareholder,
tax payable and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the prevailing market prices.
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4. EB7EWERE) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
SREER  BABAER REER LEREM 4E
Personal
Magnesium  communication Strategic Corporate
products products products and others Total
“E-FEMA-AZ-F-BF Period from 1 April 2015 to Tixn TR T TiEn TR

TZA=1-REH 31 December 2015 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000
ARUA: Segment revenue:

BETIRER Sales to external customers - 33,345 106,192 - 139,537
HEEE Segment results (1,565) (8,996) (12.282) (5,520) (28,363)
#E: Reconciliation:

FI8RA Interest income 65
HERBAT W& Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 179
BENE ERNE Provisional gain on bargain purchase 7,182
s Finance costs (934)
~RERAREZHE Impairment of investment in a oint venture (180)
AELNTEEETRER Share of profits and losses of joint ventures 1,136
BERAREEHRER Share of profits and losses of an associate 0
nAGR Loss before tax (20,919)
A5RE Segment assets 258,307 37,482 164,614 3,281 463,774
ik Reconciliation:

AEEE Unallocated assets 389,968
BEE Total assets 853,742
HE8E Segment labilities 149,191 13,598 45,123 1,462 200,374
ik Reconciliation:

FIREE Unallocated Tabilties 179,050
ek Total liabilties 388,424
Rt EER Other segment information:

HEREH Depreciation and amortisation 793 1,560 5,240 945 8,538
ERREAARE Impairment of deferred development cost - - 27 - 87
T Capital expenditure 232,173 450 895 - 233 518*
HENE - BERRERR Gain on disposal of items of property,

JWE - FE plant and equipment, net - (1) 4 - (5)
FHEEERE Provision of slow moving inventories - 9 1977 - 1,986
ERFERE Product warranty provision - 152 49 - 201
ARERRERERED Reversal of unutiised product warranty

provision - (500) - - (500)

BOENE RS E Reversal of impaiment of trade receivables - - (229) - (229)

YR SR AE Impaimment of trade receivables - - 206 - 206

* BARLTBESAWE  BENLEE - * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

AR HAERERELEREXRAN 8 and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and deferred

BERaKENB AR ZEE ° development costs, including assets from the acquisition of a
subsidiary.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

4. EBIFERCE)

2BEER  EABNER REER EREM g8
Personal
Magnesium  communication Strategic Corporate
products products products and others Total
BE_Z-1%=F=ft-H  Yearended 31 March 2015 T T TAT T TET

IEE HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEUA: Segment revenue:

HETIREP Sales to extemal customers - 67,914 196,019 - 223,933
FEEE Segment results s (29,677) (48,261) (2,926) (80,864)
% Reconciliation:
FISHA Interest income 89
HENBLAA ME Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 280
REANK Finance costs (999)
—RBAIRE R Impairment of investment in  joint venture (6,500)
A ERE  RENE Impairment of investment in an

available-for-sale investment (14,799)
HEAHNERE B Loss on disposal of an available-for-sale

investment (6)
U EARERE Impairment of amount due from an associate (7,225)
Rl e - 38 Impairment of other receivables, net (1,554)
ABATEEENRER Share of profits and losses of joint ventures 1029
wige Loss before tax (110,504)
AREE Segment assets - 5132 160,145 3,079 214 546
#f - Reconciliation:
RAARAE Unallocated assets 124,950
BEE Total assets 339,496
AEER Segment liabilities - 16,296 39,516 2,032 57844
b Reconciliation:
APREE Unallocated liabilities 71912
Ba% Total liabiiies 129,756
Hfpp5EH Other segment information:
MEREH Depreciation and amartisation - 1,267 9597 1,108 11,972
ERREAARE Impairment of deferred development cost - - 362 - 362
T Capital expenditure - 2,368 2,361 3,167 7,896"
HENE BRERABEEZ  Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,

EE/ (%) 78 plant and equipment, net - 2 (4) - ?)
THESEE Provision of slow moving inventories - 2,101 11,578 - 13,679
EnREafE Product warranty provision - 322 133 - 455
EWE SE R E Impairment of trade receivables = 5 4059 - 4,064
Efp UG RE Impairment of other receivables - 2,839 2,150 - 4989
* BARXBEEADE  BEREER *  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

EREF A o equipment and deferred development costs.
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4. B EREBR(GE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

i & & R Geographical information
(a) REIABEFZBA (a) Revenue from external customers
—E—AE
MNE—HZE BZE
—E-1fF —T-nF
+=A=+—-B =A=+—H
HA ] HEFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
=N Japan 69,725 123,347
B5 Hong Kong 30,890 46,826
PR Middle East 2,218 5,007
ag Taiwan 880 7,376
BOM Europe 11,945 15,967
fiAEs] Vietnam - 16
HE(BHBRRIN) Mainland China (other than Hong Kong) 21,393 16,944
JEEM North America 201 2,411
HAh, Others 2,285 6,039
139,537 223,933

bt 2 WA BRI R IRIEE P AT

TEH ©

The revenue information

locations of the customers.

above is based on the

RS (BR) AR AT » 2015 AFRE
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4. B BEBR(GE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

HWEER(E) Geographical information (continued)
(b) ERBEE (b) Non-current assets
—E—REF S
+=A =A
=t—H =+—H
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FHERT FAT
HK$°000 HK$’'000
B (FBRIN) Mainland China (other than Hong Kong) 365,503 138,856
& Hong Kong 9,385 10,300
HAh Others 40 60
374,928 149,216
Pz ERBEEERZREE The non-current assets information above is based
ENFAH  ATHESRER on the locations of assets and excludes available-
AN o for-sale investments.
FEEFEH Information about major customers
RKEZETERFP WA E@AIME Revenue from each of the major customers, which
AEE 2 W A10% KA £ - #2510 individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s
™ revenue, is set out below:
“E-RfMA-RE-E-IF+-A=+-BHH
Period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015
BABHER RRER By
Personal
communication Strategic
products products Total
TET TET TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
X EH Customer A - 14,981 14,981
HE_T-Rf-A=+-HLEE
Year ended 31 March 2015
EABRER KEEmR ks
Personal
communication Strategic
products products Total
AT TET AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEL Customer B - 22,559 22,559
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5. WA~ EIR AR K E - HE 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

NET
WABAEIE, N EEANEEEER Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods
MEZEEBEFERERERRZITH sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts
e - during the period/year.
WA~ Bt A RS FEE 5T An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is
N as follows:
—E-I1F
MA—HZ BHE
—E-RF —T-hF
+=A=+—-8B =A=+—8H
Him HFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
By &E FET FAET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
'ON Revenue
HEEY Sale of goods 139,537 223,933
Hlg A Other income
RITH B UA Bank interest income 65 89
RIS &M A Service fee income 3,260 2,228
H At Others 8,023 9,297
11,348 11,614
Hitizs - 38 Other gains, net
B iy o (B WU W e Provisional gain on bargain
purchase 34 7,182 —
HEME - KE R Gain on disposal of items of
HEEE 2 W property, plant and equipment 5 2
HEHB ARz e Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 35 179 280
7,366 282
18,714 11,896
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6. BiATEE 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX
REBZRABEES MR GTA)T The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
5| & 18 - (crediting):
—E-IF
mE—AZ 8z
—E-FF —“E—AhF
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
Him HEE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
B = FET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ERFEERA" Cost of inventories sold" 102,229 166,497
e Depreciation 13 7,717 10,908
BRHERE  ER Recognition of prepaid lease
payments 14 393 493
MERx Research and development expenses:
B BIEF A Deferred development costs
amortised 15 428 571
BRI ARE Impairment of deferred development
costs 15 237 362
AERZH Current year expenditure 15,476 29,634
16,141 30,567
THREFLEMRET 2 Minimum lease payments under
RIEAEFHE operating leases in respect of land
and buildings 4,345 7,463
ZER N & Auditors’ remuneration 1,530 1,140
EERMAXZ Employee benefit expense (including
(Ei‘ﬁi% A ESIE directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
B #FHek Wages and salaries and benefits
EWE?‘NJ in kind 70,180 112,504
BEEZEEIMER Pension scheme contributions 4,411 6,119
74,591 118,623
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6. BiATEE(E)

AEEzBABEENR, (GTA)T

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

PIEIE : () (crediting): (continued)
—E-I1F
MA—RBZ BHE
—E-AEF —E—hF
+=A=+—HB =A=+—H
Hi HEE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
B = FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BE N ZFE %) Foreign exchange differences, net (1,496) 1,135
BT ERE" Provision of slow moving inventories” 1,986 13,679
EmRERE Product warranty provision 27 201 455
ARAEMRERERD Reversal of unutilised warranty
provision 27 (500) —
HEAMEHERE 2 BB Loss on disposal of an available-for-
sale investment* — 6
—GERAREZRE" Impairment of an investment in a joint
venture* 16 180 6,500
AHHERE ZRE" Impairment of available-for-sale
investments* 18 — 14,755
JFE Wi Bt 5 B R IR R B > Impairment of an amount due from an
associate* 17 — 7,225
FEWE 5 R FURE Impairment of trade receivables** 21 206 4,064
F Ol I E 5 BR TR E Reversal of impairment of trade
receivables™* 21 (229) —
Hi R 2 RE Impairment of other receivables,
JFRE net*** 22 — 6,543
R BB Provisional gain on bargain purchase” 34 7,182 —

R ERGABEaREMEIERERY !
[$5ERA ] or loss and other comprehensive income
* BREREEEZREMZERERZ *

[HEfp@eEH %8

R A IS %
MHERDI#HEH ]

R EMEERERZ "

Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit

Included in “Other operating expenses, net” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Included in

“Selling and distribution expenses”
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

comprehensive income, respectively.

income
N OB O OFOE 1554000/95 T K&
4,989,000 7T 2 & BERES
B R H M2 E %%ZFEMJ@ 3
B oFE | RITREH ] -
" BERGABXREMEERERY " Included in
EL YN AR

“other income and gains”

*** In prior year, amounts of HK$1,554,000 and HK$4,989,000 were
included in “Other operating expenses, net” and “Administrative
expense” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

A (

Z)VERAT o 2015 BERE
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B & B 25 7. FINANCE COSTS
—E-1fF
MA—RBZ BHE
—E-AF “E—hEF
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
HE HEE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REFRZHEEZ Interest on bank borrowings wholly
RITEENE repayable within five years 934 998
8. EEXEME 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

BELETRIU - BERRIGHE
383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) B () & A LA
R(BRBESMRER)RGI)E 25
ATHEBEHRAANESHES0T :

Directors’ remuneration for the period, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

—E-HE
A—H=Z BHE
—E-1F —E-RF
+=A=+-R =A=+—AH
HiME IFFE
Period from
1 April 2015
to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
we Fees 165 512
Hib e : Other emoluments:
e RMEEYHNR Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind - 9,143
RIRETEIE K Pension scheme contributions - 264
- 9,407
165 9,919
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“E—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

8. EEME (&)
(a) BYFHTES

ERAREREF AR B IERTT

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

BEEXNESNT directors during the period/year were as follows:
—E-RF
A—RAZ% S
—F-1Ff —T-I1F
+=A=+-R =A=+—AH
HiF IFFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt Wong Kon Man, Jason* - 128
Vipe =T Fung, Henry* - 128
P Li Chi Kwong* - 128
BB RS Kwong Ping Man** 23 =
oRA AN Cheung Sound Poon** 23 -
PR fel ** Chen Gang** 23 -
69 384

RAHAE R I M B IERITE
EYNHEMMES(BEE_ZT—H
F==A=+—HILFE  £8)-

© ERXHRLE - BAEEERIER
A D BEAR R B ERTE
£ R-F-AF=A—tABE
2

o BRXEAE C RAEARSLLERREIE
EEEZRERKRRARNAFIBILI
BiITEE R -_T—AF=RAAH
EERT

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the

period (Year ended 31 March 2015: Nil).

*

Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason, Mr. Fung, Henry, and Mr. Li Chi

Kwong resigned as independent non-executive directors of
the Company with effect from 26 March 2015.

*%

Mr. Kwong Ping Man, Mr. Cheung Sound Poon, and Mr.

Chen Gang were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company with effect from 5 March 2015.
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8. EEM< (&) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) HITESKIHITES (b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors

e BER BGTE

He BENAla 7 ame
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

TR TR TiEn TER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000

“Z-IfNA-REC-E Period from 1 April 2015 to
-RFE+ZA=+-RHH 31 December 2015

HTEE: Executive directors:
" Shum Sai Chit"” - - - -
BEE™ Chi Bi Fen™ - - - -
FHITES Non-executive directors:
o Meng Jian*** 75 - - 75
EEZATHLS Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP* - - - -

75 - - 75
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8. EEME(E)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) BITESERFHTES(E) (b) Executive directors and non-executive
directors (continued)
e EMR RIRGTE
ik EMila i3 BHe
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
TEL THL THBT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ-E2-1f=-H=1-H Year ended 31 March 2015
ILEE
#7EE: Executive directors:
EEZATHL" Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP* - 2786 60 2,846
BEE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas" - 2,756 60 2,816
Elszg’ Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian" = 592 27 619
ABHE" Kazuhiro Otani’ - 1,826 63 889
L35 Lee Koon Hung' - 1,182 54 236
it Shum Sai Chit"” - - - -
BEE™ Chi Bi Fen" - - - -
- 9,142 264 9,406
FHITES Non-executive directors:
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith® 128 = g 128
o Meng Jian*** - - - -
%@%K%ﬁ” Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP* - - - -
128 9,142 264 9,534
# BEFLALEER-_ZE—AHF=A # Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson was re-designated as a non-

##

ZHARARERERTES -

ERRAZTR=ZZT—HAF=A
ZHNBEEHEIERITES -

BRELAE  BERELLAS
MEELERTBHELDEEAD
RZHITES N-_ZT—H&E=A
ZHRBERK -

MERAEERBESEECERE
RARRATES  WT—HF
“HEBEH -

HRELCEZERADAIEHR
TEE WN_ZT-—RF=—AAHLE
B o

RAEIE A - I 8 &8 F 5T 7 )X

B RE

HEEMUME 2 ZB(BE

—E-RF=-A=T-BHLFE:

&) -

##

executive director on 26 March 2015.

Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith resigned as a non-executive
director on 26 March 2015.

Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian,
Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, and Mr. Lee Koon Hung resigned as
executive directors of the Company with effect from 26
March 2015.

Mr. Shum Sai Chit and Mr. Chi Bi Fen were appointed as
executive directors of the Company with effect from 5 March
2015.

Mr. Meng Jian was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 5 March 2015.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
period (Year ended 31 March 2015: Nil).
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9. IEESHESR 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

REAFRNTEERHEESREEA In prior year, the five highest paid employees included
—E-RAFWMA—HEZFT—HF four directors, details of whose remuneration are set
TZA=+T—BHHE: UR)ES - out in note 8 above (Period from 1 April 2015 to 31
HMeF B2 HN EXMFE8 - W3k December 2015: Nil). Details of the remuneration for the
ARREEz hEémaFEENT five highest paid employees who are not a director of
BT the Company are as follows:

“E-RfF

mA—RAZE BHE

—E-RF —E—fF
t=A=+-B ZA=+-—8

HiME HFE
Period from
1 April 2015
to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e EMEEYN R Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,008 913
RIRGT I K Pension scheme contributions 137 17
4,145 930
FNRRATEE 2 IEEERIEIT The number of non-director and non-chief executive
BEEZSHFEEZAEAT : highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:
EEAHE
Number of employees
—E-RF
MA—HZ HE
—E-1F —E—RF
+=-A=+—-H =ZA=+—H
HAM HFE
Period from
1 April 2015
to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
=% 1,000,0007& 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 4 1
1,000,001 Bt E HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
1,500,000 % 7T 1 -
5 1
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10. FT15%

el 5 A B A28 B LB B A R A
BB RERRRA - (e
HEERERERBE-T— At
ZAS+—HILEE m®) o bl
[ 2 838 B FIBEE Ty 18 A S AT
W R Y R o AL AR
ERBREE -

10.INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the period (Year ended 31 March 2015: Nil). Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

—g-EHF

MA—HZE
—E-1fF BEZE
+=A —ZE—AfF
=+—-H =A=1+-—H
i HFE

Period from

1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FTAERT FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000

BIER — Efbihf= Current — Elsewhere

AHREFE M Charge for the period/year - 13

AT E BRI AR R B K2 KB
REPTEBR,RIERE R AT B R &t
BoHBEARENBERRRGFTE 2K
AR ARGERB R (BDEE
BMER)EERB R ZHERAT

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory rates for the countries/jurisdictions in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

—F-HAENA-AZ

—2-HF+=-A=+—H BE_T—1F
Hir ZRA=+—HIFE
Period from 1 April 2015 Year ended
to 31 December 2015 31 March 2015
THET % TET %
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
75 Al 5 18 Loss before tax (20,919) (110,504)
BEEMERGFE L Tax at the statutory tax rates
IR (3,335) 15.9 (20,248) 18.3
FEMEAEARIRES A Profits and losses attributable to
A A R B8 joint ventures and an associate (187) 0.9 170 (0.1)
BAMNTZ WA Income not subject to tax (2,333) 11.2 (3,429) 3.1
ARHIR 2 X Expenses not deductible for tax 4,192 (20.0) 9,971 (9.0)
FEERZTIBERE  Tax losses not recognised 4,115 (19.7) 13,549 (12.3)
BAEREEAZ Tax losses utilised from previous
HIREE period (2,452) 11.7 - -
BAEBEERHEFE Tax charge at the Group’s
ZBIAX effective rates - - 13 -

R (BB ) AR AT o 2015 BFE R
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11.

12.

3=\

EEETERN-_T—RFWMA—H
E-T-RF+-A=1+—BHHEK
BHE_Z-—hF=A=+—HILFE
IRAHAERTALR,

RRABREBERRESE ARA
BRER

BREXREETIREARQGKRIERS
EAEBE-_ZE—FAFHNA—HZEZ
E-hE+-_A=1+—BHEERE
20,916,000 8 T(BHE-_E—RHF =
A=+—H%E : E 107,460,000
B ) RZPEEBITEEKZ
15 £2,038,203,859f% (= =
—RAEF=ZA=+—B(E&E?%):
1,691,272,520 % ) 5T & (B T HAE
REREBR 2 AREEE) -

AEEE_T—RFNHA—RBE=_ZF
—hAF+-_A=+—HBHAEEE=
E—RAF=A=1+—HIFEILEE
g TR -

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

The Board of directors does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the period from 1 April
2015 to 31 December 2015 and the year ended 31
March 2015.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is
based on the loss for the period attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$20,916,000
(year ended 31 March 2015: loss of HK$107,460,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue of 2,038,203,859 (31 March 2015 (restated):
1,5691,272,520) during the period, as adjusted to reflect
the open offers during the period.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the period from 1 April 2015 to 31
December 2015 and the year ended 31 March 2015.
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13. % - BERRE 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
EELH BR-%E
Ry EENRRE E#%  HERME  IARIE hE 3
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Tooling Motor
buildings improvements ~ equipment  machinery  and moulds vehicles Total

TE7 TR TER TER Thn T TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

ZE-RETZR=1-H 31 December 2015

WZF-RF=A=t-BR  At31 March 2015 and 1 Apri 2015:

“2-hEMA-R:

A Cost 150,630 20,961 78,755 93,640 129,088 7,820 481,794
2ithE Accumulated depreciation (36,842) (19,165) (74,152) (89,022) (127,199) (6,949) (353,329)
EEFE Net carrying amount 113,788 1,79 4,603 4,618 2,789 LAl 128,465

RZF-REMA-B BHHRE  At1 Apil 2015, net of accumulated

ithe depreciation 113,788 1,796 4,603 4,618 2,789 871 128,465
RE Additions - - 159 618 282 - 1,059
BENBAR(G ) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) 117431 - 2 81,726 - 1431 200,810
AHERE Depreciation provided during the

period (2911) (572) (599) (1,859) (1,475) (301) om)
EHE] Exchange realignment (7,136) (40) (188) (1,663) (57) (25) (9,109)

RCE-RETZA=+-HA-  At31 December 2015, net of
BARE:E accumulated depreciation 21,172 1,184 4197 83,440 1,539 1,976 313,508

RZE-RE+-A=T-H:  At31 December 2015:

i Cost 259,478 20,202 77,408 170,576 128,699 9,037 665,400
ZinE Accumulated depreciation (38,306) (18,018) (73,211) (87,136) (127,160) (7,061) (351,892)
BEFHE Net carrying amount 21,172 1,184 4197 83,440 1,539 1,976 313,508
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13. 9% - BERRE(E) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
BELH A %E
KEF REMERE ke HRR#EE IARIE g EBIR g
Leasenold Furniture,
landand  Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Tooling Motor  Construction
buildings improvements  equipment  machinery  and moulds vehicles in progress Total

TEL TEL TR TEL TEL TR TEL TEL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000

ZE-1%5=A=1-F 31 March 2015

R-E-MERA-A At 1 April 2014:

i Cost 150,133 25,368 85,513 93218 127,915 8,911 497 491,555
g Accumulated depreciaton (8417) (43711 (80943 (85851) (1B (851) - (38449)
EE¥E Net carrying amount 116,716 997 45710 7367 2562 397 497 133,106

RZE-MERA—-H BN At1 April 2014, net of

ke acoumulated depreciation 116,716 997 4570 7367 2562 397 497 133,106
RE Additions - 1,582 1,058 603 228 855 - 6,330
KERRENE Depreciation provided during

the year (3425) 0 (100 BXM5) (200) (381) S ({09
e Disposals - (28) (1) (7) = - - (36)
&2 Transfer 497 s = . = - (407) =
HERBAR(H3E 30) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 35) - - (15) - = - - (15)
L) Exchange realignment - (5) () - = - - (12)

RZE-RE=F=1-H" At 31 March 2015, net of
BHRZiTE accumulated depreciation 113788 1,79 4,603 4618 2789 871 = 128,465

RZF-REZA=T—H: At31March 2015:

KA Cost 150,630 20,961 78755 93,640 129,988 7820 - 481,794

2iE Accumulated depreciation (36,842) (19,165) (74,159) (80.022)  (127,199) (6,949) - (353329)

BEFE Net carrying amount 113,788 1,79 4603 4618 2789 871 - 128,465
RZZE—RF+A=+—H && At 31 December 2015, a building of the Group with a
E — 1% BR EF 497,245,000 BT net carrying amount of approximately HK$7,245,000
ZEF(ZE-—RAF=A=+—8": (31 March 2015: HK$7,455,000) was pledged to secure
7,455,000 A7) B IE I AR A banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26).
SEMER IRITEEE M 26) °
RZZE—RF+A=+—H && At 31 December 2015, certain buildings of the
BETARPEKRE 2 EFREF Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
B4 A114,902,0008 T(ZF—H HK$114,902,000 situated in Mainland China (31
F=A=+—08 : \))EREFME March 2015: Nil) was in process of obtaining building
REE - ownership certificates.

104 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015



A %5 80 R P aE (4R

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZT—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

14. B LA ERE 14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
o
MA—HBZ Bz

—B-HF —ZTAfF
+=A=t+-B =ZA=+—"H

Hi HFE

Period from

1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FHERT FHT
HK$°000 HK$’'000

RERRE, FERBR 2 Carrying amount at the beginning of

FREE period/year 16,654 17,147
BB B A Al (M5t 34) Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) 31,363 -
KA, FEEBER Recognised during the period/year (note 6)

(MtEE6) (393) (493)
M &7 Exchange realignment (783) -
RE/FRZRAEE Carrying amount at the end of the

period/year 46,841 16,654
BIAFEFRIE « 184 REM  Current portion included in prepayments,

FEMBR X 2 mE BB 1D deposits and other receivables (1,173) (478)

FERENEB (D Non-current portion 45,668 16,176
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15. 1E 7E B 28 B A<

15. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

—E-HEF
mE—AZ BE
—E-1F —“E—hF
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
HA R IHFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FHERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$’'000
RERFA) - At the beginning of the period/year:
PR Cost 40,843 39,332
REHEHERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (39,708) (38,826)
AREDFE Net carrying amount 1,135 506
PE 2 KA - BBk Cost, net of accumulated amortisation,
RET#E KORE and impairment at the beginning of the
period/year 1,135 506
RNE — NEHZE Additions — internal development 286 1,566
REAR,FERTIRE Amortisation provided during the
(Fg5E6) period/year (note 6) (428) (571)
B,/ FNRE Impairment during the period/year (237) (362)
fE 5. B 5 Exchange realignment - (4)
RER,/ FER At the end of the period/year 756 1,135
RE/ R At the end of the period/year:
PR Cost 41,068 40,843
SEHEHERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (40,312) (39,708)
AREDFE Net carrying amount 756 1,135
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16. 8B RRAIZKRE 16. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-RF S
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FTHERT FHT
HK$°000 HK$’000
BIEEEFE Share of net assets 3,713 2,577
Whgm & Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
10,393 9,257
R —REERRERR Amounts due from a joint venture 577 606
B ORE" Less: Impairment * (6,680) (6,500)
4,290 3,363
FEWAEERRIRZ — RE  Amounts due from joint ventures — current 885 1,201

EREBERBIBRKDEENEE QT
ZIRED - REAR - 2B TE
EREHRE+ —EAREE - 80
A MBRRKRATIRIERE

JEU & & A RBRF 885,000 #Br(=
TE—RE=A=+—H : 1,201,000
BIT)IBRERAEERBEES -
AEEHR RS RERBTEENRS-

# HREEE2E QB RAIZERKRR
(HWRBEZEEEBRE)BIANR—A
BRRIZRERERAER  RABHESHE
MO EAABZEWE - MERDHR
ZAEEBERRZREAKREAET?,851,000%
T EHE_ZT—RF=ZA=+—HLF
& : 7,971,000 7T ) (R 0 BR R 1B & 18
A ) FEFR 8 (8 6,680,000 BT (HZE—=
—RF=A=+—HILFE : 6,500,000
BT °

The amounts due from joint ventures included in
investments in joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
free and are not repayable within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period and are therefore shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
non-current.

The amounts due from joint ventures of HK$885,000 (31
March 2015: HK$1,201,000) included in the Group’s
current assets, are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed term of repayment.

# Impairment of HK$6,680,000 (year ended 31 March 2015:
HK$6,500,000) was recognised during the period for an
investment in a joint venture with a carrying amount of
HK$7,851,000 (year ended 31 March 2015: HK$7,971,000)
(before deducting the impairment loss) because the directors
have reviewed the carrying amount of the investment in that joint
venture with reference to its business performances prepared
by the investee’s management, and considered that the amount
could not be recoverable.
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16. 8 ERRIZRE(E) 16.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Y —aBERRIRFBERR—EE The movements in the provision for impairment of an
NAIZIREBEBE 2 ZEFHNT : amount due from a joint venture and an investment in a

joint venture are as follows:

—E-HEF

mA—RAZE BHE

—E-RF —E—FF
t=A=+-B ZA=+-—8

HE IEFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
THET TR
HK$°000 HK$'000
RER/F 4] At the beginning of period/year 6,500 5,706
EMERERTT B ZBRF  Amount written off as uncollectible - (5,706)
BEBEER(ME6) Impairment loss recognised (note 6) 180 6,500
ERF R At the end of period/year 6,680 6,500
KREBTFTEELEERNRIZFHBWNOT ¢ Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as
follows:
Bk
Percentage of
B 81T X
£ Rhzsts SRRESLE FoERz FRE 7 TEER
Particulars Place of
of issued registration ~ Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held  and business interest power sharing activities
ERMRERRBARLA(ERNE)) ARE B/ ER 19.78 20 19.78 RELHEETER
Chongging New Standard 5401550t PRC/Mainland =
Medical Equipment Co., Ltd* RMB5,401,550 China Manufacture
and trading of
electronic medical
appliances
ANE HEERAR" AR%150007c  RE/HEAH, 50 50 50 MIHESTER
RMB15,000  PRC/Mainland Online trading of
China electronic products
REEB LK AN E 7T ak & At &2 ok * Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
BT R 8 Fr R firm of the Ernst & Young global network
A EEEEBERRRIKREBAR AIFEE The above investment in joint ventures are indirectly
¥A - held by the Company.
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16. 8 ERRIZRE(E) 16.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
TRINTAEEERTBERMEH The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
BERAZHMBERNRE - information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

—E-RF —E—fF
+=A=+-B ZA=+-H

31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FTHERT FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
REARE,EEREEAEZ AT Share of the joint ventures’ profit
i ) for the period/year 1,136 1,029
NEAM,FEE(RAE AT Share of the joint ventures’ total
EHMABE comprehensive income for the period/year 1,136 1,029
REBRAERAIREZE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
E#EE investments in the joint ventures 3,713 2,757
17. BE QT2 RE 17.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
—E-IF —E—hF
+=ZHA=+—H =HA=+—H
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
THER FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
L EEFE Share of net assets 18 22
FEU — KRB & N R BR FURV B B 1 2 The movements in the provision for impairment of
;T : amounts due from an associate are as follows:
—_E—RE
mE—-B% Bz
—E2-hF —T-hF
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
Hi HFE
Period from
1 April 2015
to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FTHER FHT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
RER/E4) At the beginning of period/year - 11,165
WEEBERER(MfEe) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) - 7,225
EMERERTKE 2R Amount written off as uncollectible - (18,390)
KA/ FR At the end of period/year - -
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17. BE AR ZBRE(E) 17.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

iRl /NIE] o= =g (U N Particulars of an associate are as follows:

AR, AEBES

e BT R FrARERR
£ Bz #1E Sl 2B TEEK
Percentage
Place of  of ownership
Particulars incorporation/ interest
of issued registration attributable Principal
Name shares held and business  to the Group activities
ENFEETREERAA" AR#3,000,0007t FE/HEANH 30 EBEER
RMB3,000,000  PRC/Mainland Dormant
China
E RIEHE B oK € 5D B 75 AT s E fih &2 ok * Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
@A E TR K B Frsi firm of the Ernst & Young global network
REBEER 7B SN TR - T4 H The Group’s shareholdings in the associate comprise
KNG EWRBARIEAE 2 IRER equity shares held through wholly-owned subsidiaries of
N o the Company.
TRIRANEBFERTBEANMEER The following table illustrates the financial information of
BN T 2 IR AR E the Group’s associate that is not individually material:

—E-hF —ET—RF
+=A=+-B =ZA=+—H

31 December 31 March
2015 2015
TExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
ANEARE,FE R4 AR  Share of the associate loss for the period/
B8 year 4 —
ANEARE,FE B2 AR  Share of the associate total comprehensive
Z2HEIMA B income for the period/year 4 —
REBRE A NFIREZE Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
H B E investment in an associate 18 22
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18. AL HHERE 18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—E-hF —E—RHF
+=A=+—-8 =A=+—H

31 December 31 March

2015 2015

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

JEETRAERE - LAKA  Unlisted equity investments, at cost 32,680 32,680
B ORmE? Less: Impairment” (25,380) (25,380)

7,300 7,300
# HRBRERARE BEREEE *  Impairment was recognised for unlisted investments with a
32,680,000 BT (HBRIBEEER) (= carrying amount of HK$32,680,000 (before deducting the
T—HAF=HA=+—H : 32,680,000 #& impairment loss) (31 March 2015: HK$32,680,000) due to the

T0)Z I ETIR A ERRE non-performance of these investments.
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18. At ERE (E)

19.

(continued)

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

AHEEREREREZZESHHT ¢ The movements in the provisions for impairment of
available-for-sale investments are as follows:
“E-RfF
mE—HZ BHE
—E-HEF —“E—hF
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
HA R HFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’'000
] At the beginning of period/year 25,380 15,226
BERE(MEE6) Provision for impairment (note 6) - 14,755
A EERERNHERM  Amount written off upon disposal
He &% of an available-for-sale investment - (4,601)
RE/FR At the end of period/year 25,380 25,380

PR E BT EHBEESFRE -
HIEEERAIHELERE -

R-ZZE—RAF+-_A=+—8" 3Lt
MREREANSEAFEGESHE
ZEBRFERRE  RAREERAR
B S BE A 5230 81 = 1 DA RK AR 2508
BEEESIE -

RERE

BEMESMIRE EZeFH

19.

The above investments consist of investments in unlisted
equity securities which were designated as available-
for-sale investments.

As at 31 December 2015, the unlisted equity
investments were stated at cost less impairment
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
was so significant that the directors were of the opinion
that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets relate to deposits for which there was
no recent history of default.
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20. 78 20.INVENTORIES
—E-hF —T-hHF
+=A=+—HA =A=+—H
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JRM Raw materials 37,846 19,291
8 Work in progress 9,963 5,327
2K o Finished goods 10,781 10,913
58,590 35,531

21. ERE B BRI

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

—2-RF T HF
+=A=t-B =A=t—H

31 December 31 March

2015 2015

FET FHET

HK$°000 HK$'000

JEWE ZER K Trade receivables 37,085 38,886
Al Impairment (16,785) (17,765)
20,300 21,121

$%Imﬁﬁﬁz%%ixuﬁm
FREIT o IHREB—RNFI0E0
X BEARFE ﬁwﬁﬁgﬁﬁ $
EEFB kU FHERE 2 UK
Lﬁ%ﬂ#ﬂlﬂﬁgﬂ&hir
1K o TEETHEMOH %
H o #WLx%L MERERZfE
WESRFELBBERLEMOBZRE
AR BIEERK Iﬁﬁﬁ%¢ ZIN
EEWESEEWKE FRERERFTHE
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%gkﬂ%h &
B PRI FE o

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally 30 to
90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables related to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
interest-free.
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21. BWE SR (4E)

AT REWE ZERFNIREIR - %
B B (kR E) < Rl 2 AT -

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the payment due
dates and net of provisions, is as follows:

—E-RE —E—fF

+=A=+—-H =A=+—H

31 December 31 March

2015 2015

THET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

AAGIIPN Within 60 days 19,101 20,406
61290k 61 to 90 days 127 134
i@ 90K Over 90 days 1,072 581
20,300 21,121

FEWE ZRRFORERE 2 ZEHIAT -

The movements in the provisions for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

—E-RF
A—HZ BHZE
—EB-EE —E-AF
+=ZRA=+t-8 =ZA=+—H
Hi IEFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FTAERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RER/F4)) At the beginning of period/year 17,765 15,507
WmERBERER (M) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 206 4,064
EE BB (s 6) Impairment losses reversed (note 6) (229) -
EMERERATRE ZBRFX  Amounts written off as uncollectible (957) (1,806)
REFR At the end of period/year 16,785 17,765
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21. EWE ZERR(E) 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ll EWE SRS mﬁﬁé{% B IE
R & RmERKE SRR EE
16,785,000 T(ZE — A F = A
=+—H8 17,765,000 7t) H &K
H1E A 16,785,000 8 L( ZE—RHF
=A=+—H :17,765,000% ) °
11214 50 (5 L 2 5 B 2 S o 5
SBAGIAR R - TRHLERKERRK
Aajug e o

I = AE 5l sk 2 RIAR A28 TR (E < FE
B R BB

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired
trade receivables of HK$16,785,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$17,765,000) with a gross carrying amount of
HK$16,785,000 (31 March 2015: HK$17,765,000).
The individually impaired trade receivables relate
to customers that were in default or delinquency in
payments and the receivables are not expected to be
recovered.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

—E-RF —E—fF
+=A=+-B ZA=+-8

31 December 31 March

2015 2015

HK$°000 HK$’'000

RBEA TR B Neither past due nor impaired 18,362 19,951
BE—EMEA 1 to 2 months past due 739 455
BEME=EA 2 to 3 months past due 127 134
BEER=EA Over 3 months past due 1,072 581
20,300 21,121

R 368 BRIV R (E 2 e Y R S IR AT
HAYE 4 R LSRR AR D R P -

B8 BB ERE 2 R RSB N A
5% ECsk RFVBIUEF © RIEG
sk - ARAEERR  ANEE
BRUWESANE - WRSERIDA
2ERE - BB FERIEL R
B

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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22. BARE - RERHMBEKR  22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

TA

RECEIVABLES

—E-RE —E—fF
+=A=+-B ZA=+-8

31 December 31 March

2015 2015

FTHERT FAT

HK$°000 HK$’'000

ARG S Prepayments 3,041 1,948
b Deposits 4,221 5,147
H b FEUFRIR Other receivables 34,569 32,993
A Impairment (27,567) (28,025)
14,264 12,063

HeMEBHSNE - BEREEER
fil FEU AR KB R

FHREMARE e REMERK
AR 3% 2 Rk B # 15 B 35 27,567,000
BT ZE—RAF=ZA=1+—8:
28,025,000 7)) 2 Bl - HEEMEE
/27,567,000 T(—ZE—HF=H
=+—H : 28,719,000/ T) ° 15
# R (B EL Ath e Uk BR 5k B L At e UK BR 3K
RSB RIBEE R - TEEE AUk El
I R IR BR 3 2 — Bh o sk e Uk [al it
ZRINERER - AEBWEF I ZEH
BEETMEFERIEMEERAR
P o EfpE b EUBR R B EA TN &
RE N B A A HE7E 3T HA S 48 4B /R 70 8%
2B AT e

None of the deposits is either past due or impaired. The
provision for impairment relates to other receivables.

Included in the above provision for impairment
of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are provisions of HK$27,567,000 (31 March
2015: HK$28,025,000) with a carrying amount of
HK$27,567,000 (31 March 2015: HK$28,719,000). The
individually impaired other receivables relate to other
receivables that were in default or delinquency in
payments and only a portion or none of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over this
balance. The remaining balance of other receivables
is neither past due nor impaired and relates to a large
number of independent parties for whom there was no
recent history of default.
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22. i%@jxx,a RERHMEWE  22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

M(E) RECEIVABLES (continued)
TERFRIE - R e R E M EWERTZ R The movements in the provision for impairment of
ERE2EBHOT - prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as
follows:
—_E—RE
mE—HZ BHE

—E-1F —E—RF
+=A=+—-8 =A=+—H

HifE IFFE

Period from

1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
TEx THT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RER/F 1)) At the beginning of period/year 28,025 26,564
BEBEER(ME6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) - 6,955
BB R (MizE6) Impairment losses reversed (note 6) - (412)
EMERERATRE ZBRF  Amounts written off as uncollectible (458) (5,082)
RE/ER At the end of period/year 27,567 28,025

23. B4 RELZEBEERDIEM  23.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
= PLEDGED DEPOSITS

—E-RE —E—RF
+-A=t—-B =A=+—H

31 December 31 March
2015 2015
THET FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
R MIRTTH SR Cash and bank balances 125,161 112,052
EHFER Time deposits 250,488 1,012
375,649 113,064

B —BEERITERZIE  Less: Pledged deposits for a short term
AR (FIEE26) bank loan (note 26) (488) (1,012)
RekReFEEE Cash and cash equivalents 375,161 112,052
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23.

24.

25.

ReRASEEEERTER
EH(E)

RBEHR REBLUARBAA
REDFEZ2HE MRS EBEEER
#6,693,0008 T(ZE—HF=H
=+—H :6,423,0007T) > AR
BASERIBREMER - AAm - B
B BIINEE B R EE - SER
NEBTEHRT  AEBEESBER
R EIE B EBRRITHARE L
BmAEHMER -

RITME HRBIRTE BRITEHF
RZFPHHNERIAME - RIAEHE
BN IR & F K 0 FEHIE HF K HiRR
R=EA - WREB BT HFK
FERERDAM B o RITHFR MBI
PN A RIFER R BB R
FRRCERAYERTT o

e+ B 5 fRK

AT RN E RN IR E BRI
KB E 2 BRI DT

23.

24.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) amounted to HK$6,693,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$6,423,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment due
dates, is as follows:

—E-RE S

+=—A=+t+—-H =ZA=+—H

31 December 31 March

2015 2015

T FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

DR 60X Within 60 days 51,350 14,062
61290k 61 to 90 days 45 62
#8388 90 K Over 90 days 3,036 3,929
54,431 18,053

ENESERERESIMAE - B—K%
MRE0KREE -

HitE N R K BT R E

H AR M R RELEA S
HARERER -

25.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 60-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals are interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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26. it 2RITEE 26.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
—E-15F¥+ZB=1-H “E-RE=A=+-H
31 December 2015 31 March 2015
BRAI= ) TR ERM= g ) TR
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity HK$’000 interest rate Maturity HK$'000
ik | Current
RTEFT —HEM  Bank loans - secured 2.6% - 3.6% RER 30,831  2.6% - 3.5% REX 27,781
On demand On demand
FTEF — BHA  Bankloans-secured  7.1% - 8.6% 2016 38,096 -
68,927 27,781
L Notes:
(a) RZZE—AF+-_A=+—HAKER (a) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s bank loans are secured

TTEFRA T e R - by:

(i) REAEERBEHREEELED (i) a mortgage over the Group’s building, which had an
72450008 T(—E—HFE= A aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting
=+—8: 7,455,000 7T) 218 period of approximately HK$7,245,000 (31 March 2015:
FIERIIBHEM HK$7,455,000);

(i) AREEXEEZTEHERIELAE (i) the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
- & ¥ /B488,0008 jm(= = amounting to HK$488,000 (31 March 2015: HK$1,012,000);
—hF=FA=+—8H 1,012,000
EIT)

(i) ARRABRERTFTAEBMRITR (iiiy corporate guarantees by the Company to banks for banking
BRRITRHAARER €845 facilities granted to the Group amounting to HK$24,000,000
24,000,000 8 T(ZE—HF = A (81 March 2015: HK$30,000,000); and
=-+—A :30,000,000/7T) i &

(iv) EFE R A AR &AM B A R A= (iv) guarantees by an ex-shareholder of a subsidiary and
= 538,096,000 T 2 R 1T E K an ex-director of a subsidiary to banks for bank loans of
FIERITHRELIELR - HK$38,096,000.

(b) R=ZZT—RAF+=-A=+—H ~EH (b) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s secured bank loans

AR T E F30,831,000/8 T(— =
—AF=ZR=+—H:27,781,000%8
JL) 1 38,096,000 5 L (ZE—HF = A
=+t—B:E)DRABTRARE

B -

of HK$30,831,000 (31 March 2015: HK$27,781,000) and
HK$38,096,000 (31 March 2015: Nil) were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi, respectively.
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27. &5

28.

29.

27.PROVISION
EmR#E
Product
warranties
FET
HK$’000
R_E—RFMA—H At 1 April 2015 1,667
B m(HEe) Additional provision (note 6) 201
Nz NG A Amounts utilised during the period (422)
BOREFAEME6) Reversal of unutilised amount (note 6) (500)
fE X, =7 Exchange realignment (1)
WRZZT—RF+-_HA=+—H At 31 December 2015 945

REEFRBHEFERBFTEIRER
FEZFRE  BUEERETHEE
HEH - REZBEBREIRHE B
FERMEE FREBIE R BEEMET © %
IEEJr%EEﬂ% FEHEITRE - WIERE
EHIE

e — B2 R —FFEBIRR
AR =X

J& A~ — B /B8 & B — FEAE Il B3R 2 BRAK
REEH - REREBTEERY -
BRERE

BREFERT - R ERBAR12
fEAREE -

28.

29.

The Group provides two to three year warranties to its
customers on certain of its electronic products, under
which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The
amount of provision for the warranties is estimated
based on sales volumes and past experience of the
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where
appropriate.

DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has
no fixed terms of repayment.

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER

The loan from a shareholder is unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and not repayable within 12 months.
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30.

IR R
AEBERBGRIRBE B )T

BAREBEBELANBGERA
432,571,000 L(ZE—HF = ﬂ
=-+— B : 403,693,000 T )

T1ﬂ@%ﬁ%§$ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬂ
o REB IR F
lwmﬁim&m&wm&a:%
—RF=ZA=+—H 66,227,000
BIL)MMEEE AR AR—=
AFRE AR RERTDREF] o FH Lk
BARIEEE—REEHAEREEER

oA R IAK L EH B AR A8
Rz HEEE Sttt EEBEEms -
WARERELEHRIBEE -

RIFFPEPEMETE - RPBERH
W42W§ EMINEFREESTRZ

f& BB 10% 2 EHHE - RIER
EFER-_ZEENF—A—B®BREXN
WEAR - ZEZE+F+-_A=+—H
ZEEEZRBAF o W B A EEHNE
WEEMBRIZEER R BHE
Wk A IESEE B R -
MAEEME  BEAMREES% - A
it AREBEZBE B R A S 2 B
BRAN_ZEZENF—A—HUEKE
2 BRI K 2 IR S BN E B -

RZE—RF+-_A=+—8 &&E
B I 48 gt A o B N AR L 2 B B A
A - BERREREE LR RAREDY
B E A 2 BT IR B E R
EAELEHREBE - EERE - LEH
BAa -  BEARREERRENR
REDKRAIBED R ERF - RS
HiK - AR E RN E A )

BERRIRBERRZIRE KRB
EEfEAEREZR(ZE—RF=A
=+t—H:&E)-

AR EERR MRS EH A
FTiSiig R o

30. DEFERRED TAX

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong before
Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) assessment of
HK$432,571,000 (31 March 2015: HK$403,693,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
Mainland China of HK$138,799,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$66,227,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised by these
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2015, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding dividend taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings, that are subject to
withholding dividend taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries,
associate, and joint ventures established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. There
was no significant temporary difference associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate
in Mainland China at the end of the reporting period (31
March 2015: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching

to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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31. kAR 31.SHARE CAPITAL
—E-RE —E—fF
+=-—A=+t+—-H =ZA=+—H
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
T FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERITRHRE : Issued and fully paid:
2,874,390,058 (=& 2,874,390,058 (31 March 2015: 1,437,195,029)
—hRF=ZRA=+—H": ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
1,437,195,029) Ik & 1%
H{E0.10 BT 2 EiEAR 287,439 143,719
RARDEBEITIRA Z SEE#EmanT - A summary of movements in the Company’s issued
share capital is as follows:
BRI RipaE
R#e&E k& kB BE
Number Share
of shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total

TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-E-NENA—H At 1 April 2014 1,197,663,029 119,766 409,710 529,476

%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%’ﬁ(a) New issues (a) 239,532,000 23,953 52,697 76,650

RAZETRR Share issue expenses - - (2,005) (2,095)

R-Z-RE=A=+-HEK At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015

“T-nFMNA-A 1,437,195,029 143,719 460,312 604,031

BER (b) New issues (b) 1,437,195,029 143,720 143,719 287,439

BRIAETHRX Share issue expenses - - (2.971) (2,971)

W-E-RF+-A=+-H At 31 December 2015 2,874,390,058 287,439 601,060 888,499

MIEE - Notes:

a) RZZE—HE=-_A=-+/x8" (a) On 26 February 2015, 239,532,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
239,532,000 F X M EO.1/F LA & each were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.32 per share
BREEREESR0I2BTLET R for a total cash consideration on of HK$76,650,000, before
& 4R B 576,650,000 7T (F Bk A X €xXpenses.

Al °

(b) RZZE—RF+A=-+=8' ' EBRESA (b) An open offer of one offer share for every one share held by the
fEZRERFIFE RO ERE K members on the register of member on 23 October 2015 was
BERNMZELEUNGREBESRMD0.2/8 made, at an issue price of HK$0.2 per offer shares, resulting in
TTZHETEBETARREE  EHEMT the issue of 1,437,195,029 shares for a total cash consideration,
1,437,195,029 8 %19 - R B RE A before expenses, of HK$287,439,000.

287,439,000 7T (AR A1) ©
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32. & 32. RESERVES
AEERAFENBAFE 2 FES The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
BRESHZINTBRRFEIE movements therein for the current and prior years are
IFEERBERA - presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 45 of the financial statements.

AEEZFRFEEERE-NANL=F The Group’s special reserve represents the
RAT 2D EAIFTHEITZ ANEE difference between the nominal value of the shares
BHEMKE B RTRMND 2 EE - of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
RRBILFERD M BT Z AR ARG reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
HEZZR o shares in 1993, and the nominal value of the Company’s

shares issued in exchange therefor.

V. EEERFEF S 2D B 33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

EME QT MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
BEHEEARFEH R A SE B Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material
RIFVARER S I T - non-controlling interests are set out below:

—E-RF —E—fF
+=A=+-B ZA=+-H

31 December 31 March
2015 2015
RIS FTIF A AERA  Percentage of equity interest held by
B non-controlling interests:
ARG hoRFE 49% 49%
BEE BMBE 49% =
—_E—RE
A—HZ BZE
—E-5F —E—hF
+=ZHA=+—H =HA=+—H
Hif HFE
Period from
1 April to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
TEx FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEVE G R G A HAME Profit/(loss) for the period/year allocated to
S EERRN/ (EE) : non-controlling interests:
ARG oRFE 534 (3,050)
ENBE ENaE (537) =
PRE BEIIEEHIEZR 2 Accumulated balances of non-controlling
REHER interests at the reporting dates:
AR oA (6,433) (6,569)
BENimE BEMNimE 172 -
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33. A B A E SIS
AWEAR ()

THIRIESIT LM A TR AR
BE - B2 2B YR EHABED

ok

B B

33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts

AlfE R disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:
—E-IFWA—-HE-ZE—EHF Period from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015
+t=A=+—-HHH
hARHE EMEE
TExT TExT
HK$’000 HK$’000
H g A Other income 1,974 -
X H#EE Total expenses (885) (1,096)
NEARS 2% M (B8E) & Profit/(loss) for the period and total
AEIE 2 2 ER AL comprehensive income for the period 1,089 (1,096)
MENEE Current assets 775 60
FERBEE Non-current assets 45,879 36,486
mEEE Current liabilities (191) (2,300)
SEMENAE Non-current liabilities (59,592) (33,894)
R ISR AFEEE  Net cash flows from operating activities 1,240 -
REEB2IRESRAFE  Net cash flows from investing activities 3 -
BMEEBKZIRESRHFSE  Net cash flows used in financing activities (1,387) -
HekBeFEEAZ Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
ik (144) -
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THIRIESIT LM B A RS AR
BE - BB EHREHAREL

mEEREE - (&)

BE-E-—HF=A=+—HLEE

ZEB o B

33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts

disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2015

NG b EMNABE
FET FRET
HK$'000 HK$’000
H g A Other Income 2,217 -
Pt it Total expenses (8,441) =
AEFEZEBREAFEZ Loss for the year and total comprehensive
ZEARE income for the year (6,224) —
mEEE Current assets 837 -
EREBEE Non-current assets 88,313 -
mEEE Current liabilities (102,557) -
SEMENAE Non-current liabilities - -
R IS HHIEE  Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,589) —
BEEK RS RHIFEE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (225) —
MEEMK L RAERE  Net cash flows from financing activities 2,893 —
RekReFEERZ Net increase in cash and
B hnFEE cash equivalents 79 -

34. £ 56t

KRR A - NEERELE =TT
EAEE AR AR R ([ B
Al) - BB EENFTEERHE
SIELBK - ETTRBERERRTE
AAKEZ LB REBHIILEANE
B REIE KRB 2 BB - WERIA 2
BEREAREIN  KAXNEBER
“E-RFt+ZRA=+—BHEREN

BHZREY -

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION

During the period, the Group acquired the entire interest
in Xinjiang Tengxiang Magnesium Products Company
Limited (“XTMP”) from independent third parties. XTMP
is engaged in the production and trading of magnesium
ingot and semi coke. The acquisition was made as part
of the Group’s strategy to diversify the Group’s business
and enhance long-term growth potential of the Group.
The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in

the form of cash and unpaid amount was recorded as
consideration payable to the sellers as at 31 December

2015.
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34. XS/ ()

MEBERAN _T—RF+-A+HAH
(Wi B HY) 2 Al & EE R BRI I

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of XTMP as at 15 December 2015 (date of acquisition)

BABZAFERT : were as follows:
U EEE
BRZATYHE
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
LiEz3 FRET
Notes HK$'000
ME - BEMEE Property, plant and equipment 13 200,810
B T EKE Prepaid land lease payment 14 31,363
FE Inventories 5,284
U E P AR Trade receivables 3,942
BHIE - e kHEM Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
JE W BR R 118
L E Tax recoverable 1,859
RekReEEER Cash and cash equivalents 428
JERTE 5 BRK Trade payables (35,087)
Hib BRI X EEtAfE  Other payables and accruals (75,163)
ft2RITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings (38,781)
AHEAEEFERATE Total identifiable net assets
R at fair value 94,773
RiraBm REMEE Provisional gain on bargain purchase recognised
WA FR 2 B A K in other income and gains in the consolidated
W e R ER R (B statement of profit or loss and other
Wit 2 comprehensive income 5 7,182
SRV Satisfied by:
BRRS (B — stk =18 Provisional consideration — payable to the
FERTE T 2 FIE sellers in connection with the acquisition 87,591

RIBAREEE UM E B W -
REMRBHERAN _FT—AFH
A—BExXBHIEHE & &80
FTLARE - R ARBELEREN®
AEBERERE LB ERE
H 2B BERBRERERREEETE

A W B = TR ME R 2 Lt R By (1B e
R BB Ra N EN TS IR
EMATEKYIF 5 RERETH
. AEHSTBEKERRE—
& o

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered by the Group and the sellers, the purchase
consideration shall be adjusted by the operating gain
or loss of XTMP for the period from 1 May 2015 to
the completion date. The gain on bargain purchase
arising from the above acquisition is determined on
a provisional basis as the Group is in the process
of completing the negotiation of adjustments to the
purchase consideration with the sellers.

The provisional consideration and the provisional gain
on bargain purchase recognised on acquisition as
shown above may be adjusted upon the completion
of the initial accounting for the business combination
during the measurement period, which shall not exceed
one year from the acquisition date.
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4. ¥ EB(E) 34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

FebF B U B U zs 7,182,000/8 T+
ERAAEEEE & RIEED
ZIERAREFZR =R - BB
EER AT EER -

Foghe A < JEUE 5 Bk sk S B At e Uk
RN R B B A EEE S K48
BEHEE  ARRESEHRIEEIM
EXRNBERUERFT A E -

AEERGEWESEEERIIKA
1,758,000/ 7 ° thZFEKAE R A H]
EZ%%EEEE&%I@JM%E&EE

WEMBAR 2B RESTMT

The provisional gain on bargain purchase
ofHK$7,182,000 was primarily attributable to arm'’s
length negotiations between the Group and the sellers
on normal commercial terms, having taken into account
the operation and business prospect of XTMP.

The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables of XTMP at the date of acquisition
approximated to their gross contractual amounts and the
directors of the Company do not expect any significant
acquired receivables to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$1,758,000
for this acquisition. These cost have been expensed
off and are included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the period.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

FHET
HK$'000
FFARBESRERENEG Cash and bank balances acquired and net
e RIBITHEB IR AFREAK inflow of cash and cash equivalents included
RekBHeSEEEARAFHE in cash flows from investing activities 428
AR EEKIELREMWEEEIE Transaction costs of the acquisition included in
RBEA cash flows from operating activities (1,758)
(1,330)

BUEELAK - TR —1F
MA—HBHZ-_ZT—HFE+-_A=+—
HER Y B AR B 2 Was B (A
B AT RAFWA—HBHE-Z
—hF+ A=+ —HERZEFEE
EHREUEE 1,565,000 8 7T °

HRFEERAN T —AFMNA—H
EE-AF+ZA=+—HHHE®Y
I ER 2 IR EZ - MUWEBTA
HFEVUEE B IR NI —RIZE A 6F
EBNWARIBRIL TAIIT

Since the acquisition, XTMP did not contribute to the
Group’s revenue for the period from 1 April 2015 to 31
December 2015 and contributed loss of HK$1,565,000
to the consolidated loss for the period from 1 April 2015
to 31 December 2015.

As the financial information of XTMP for the period
from 1 April 2015 to 31 December 2015 had not been
previously audited, it is impractical to disclose the
revenue and profit or loss, of the combined entity, as
though the acquisition date for the business combination
had been at the beginning of the period.
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35. LEME QT 35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

—_E—RE

MA—HZ HE

—E-1F —E—RF
+t=A=+-B Z=A=1+-8

HiE IEFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
BisE FHERT THT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HEAEFE - Net liabilities disposed of:
M - BE KR Property, plant and equipment 13 - 15
RekRe&FHEEE Cash and cash equivalents 8 197
H i AR iR e Other receivables and deposits 22 1
e & & RAEIFIE Amounts due from joint ventures - 3
HifEffBRFA A&  Other payables and accruals (197) (453)
(167) (237)
HENB AR Z e Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 5 179 280
12 43
SN Satisfied by:
—MBARRERE 2 Fair value of an equity investment
NEEREBER—BE in a subsidiary retained as an
NAIZIEE investment in an associate - 22
Re Cash 12 21
12 43
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35. HEMB LR (&)

36.

35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ATRRAEEMNBRRIZRERES
FEBERAORL)FEAN :

An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the subsidiaries disposed of is
as follows:

—_E—RE
A—HZ& BHE
—E-RF —E—fF
+=A=+-R =A=+—AH
Hi HFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
THER FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
HBeRE Cash consideration 12 21
HERE MEEEEER Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (8) (197)
HHENBRARZRS Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash
EReEEBEBERA equivalents in respect of the disposals of
(Oftih ) F58 subsidiaries 4 (176)

HAEE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

RZZE—RE+=-A=+—8 " K&
EfEAMNXRAEE(ZE—HF=
A=+—H : 44,895,000/ 7T) °

RUAEFE —BILRBEEERS
(BEANEEBAZRAEER—
B ARI[HEEADRIFAR Y ™
WEABRR—-FRE627,571E T
(#14,895,0008 L) 2 2R R%E
AEBHEEAER—MBAHRA=-Z
ENFE+_A=BZ2REHZ(Z
Wzl REERZBEAR(ZE
R o Flt - WEADARMBEREA
RERBEZR  WEBREAERZD
& AERFTEATRZBEIRTE
ZNRERMEABHRFT ZESR © At
WEARREAREREBER X
REABEZEEEERE 100,000
70 MRZBFIHE 2 HMIa=aE -
HRMERDRB(IRBR]) - AR
AEERAREARZBEERRBR

HES B SRR - MEARLL
fEL B -

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no contingent
liabilities (31 March 2015: approximately HK$4,895,000).

In prior years, an independent service provider (the
“Plaintiff”) issued a legal proceeding in Hong Kong
against a subsidiary of the Group (the “Defendant”) and
a claim against the Defendant for a sum of US$627,57 1
(approximately HK$4,895,000). The Plaintiff alleged that
the Defendant was in breach of a service agreement
dated 3 December 2004 (the “Agreement”) and failed
to make payments in accordance with the Agreement
(the “Claim”). In this connection, the Defendant alleged
that the Plaintiff was in breach of the Agreement in
failing to design and develop the products in substantial
conformance to the functional specification as defined
in the Agreement and made a counterclaim against
the Plaintiff for liquidated damages in the sum of
US$100,000 and other damages to be assessed
together with interest and costs (the “Counterclaim”).
The directors of the Company were of the opinion that
the Defendant had a good chance of success on the
Claim and the Counterclaim and no provision was
required to be made.
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37.

38.

39.

EERHA

AREBAREEEEAIBFNRITE
HEFBERMEF 1323 k26 ¢

REHERH

AEERBE2HELHHEREET
BRFENENEIRES -MEZHE
BEML—E_T%F-

RZE—RE+=-A=+—0 " K&
BB TR BUE 2 &&aBEHP R Rx
VEMESEE  HHEEMBAGE
R

37.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured by
certain assets of the Group, are included in notes 13, 23
and 26.

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to twenty years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

—E-RE S
+=A=+-B ZA=+-8

31 December 31 March
2015 2015
THET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’'000
—FR Within one year 1,596 1,806
REZFEEFRF In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(BREEMTF) 4,416 4,700
iy Rk After five years - 1,960
6,012 8,466

I 39. COMMITMENTS

B FXizE38 2 R e E L BB
G REBRRELRINE THEK
ARHE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 38 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

—E-hF —E—RF
+=-A=+—-8B =A=+—H

31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETABERER A - Contracted, but not provided for:
ME - WEREE Property, plant and equipment 5,751 339
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40.BBEALTRS

(a) BRELSHMBHRREMELHFL
MRS RE R - AEH
BTIIEXRBEALRS :

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties

during the period/year:

—E-AfF
A—HZ& BHE
—E-RF —T-F
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
Hi HFE
Period from
1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2014
BisE THER FAT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
REBE L AFWEZ Royalty expense charged by
A an associate of the Group (i) - 86
m—EE N RBEsEM Purchases of products from
an associate (ii) - 5,010
wE—BEL AR ZARE  Service income from an associate
WA (iif) - 1,385
mM—&aERRHE Sales to a joint venture (iv) 3,363 1,772
MEERERARSZE Management fee paid to
BE intermediate holding company (v) 900 -
BsE - Notes:

() EREXHERREASE-HEL
ARBAMMEENE EEFEMA
BELHE N F MZMB AR
S (E R GETHE -

(i) M—EERRBE2EMmIIREZ
BERNRGRTEIBERPZARE
REGTAELR o

(i) RPEFE - KE—BERF 2R
MU A A 125,000 7T AR -

(iv) A—AARANHEDREAEE
REEEEIET PUNGY L9
T -

(v) REERBRARXNZERERS
/100,000 & TTHIER

(i)  The royalty expense was calculated based on the number
of electronic handheld products sold by a subsidiary of
the Group during the period with the terms as stipulated
in the royalty agreement between the associate and that
subsidiary.

(i) The purchases from an associate were made according
to the published prices and conditions offered by the
associate to its major customers.

(iii) In the prior year, the service income from an associate was
charged at a monthly rate of HK$125,000.

(iv) The sales to a joint venture were made according to the
published prices and conditions offered to the major

customers of the Group.

(v) The management fee paid to an intermediate holding
company was charged at a monthly rate of HK$100,000.
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40. BEALR S (E)

(b) AEBEEZEEABRMN

(continued)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group:

“E-hfF
A—HZ& BZE
—E-I1F —E—RF
+=-A=+—-8 =ZA=+—H
i HFE

Period from

1 April
2015 to Year ended
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
FTART FHET
HK$°000 HK$’'000
KHE S E A Short term employee benefits - 9,143
RURGT R Pension scheme contributions - 264

XNEEEEABZ Total compensation paid to key

e management personnel - 9,407

ESHEE—PHBERNYBR
RHFFES ©

c) P—_ZE—FRHENA=-_THB"
ARREEEERRAAR
Earnmill Holdings Limited 7]
VYBEHE BRARAEE
1,437,195,029 R R ARl 2 B &
D - FREEHINARRRZ
E—hENAZTHEMGZAE
ﬁq o

EXZFE(a)(v) R (c)BZREA
IRGMERETHRAE 14AE
EENHERIZFRFERER
5 o

Further details of directors’
included in note 8 to the financial

(c) The Company, the intermediate

emoluments are
statements.

holding company

and Earnmill Holdings Limited entered into an
underwriting agreement on 20 August 2015 in
relation to an open offer of 1,437,195,029 offer

shares of the Company. Details

are stated in the

Company’s Announcement dated 20 August 2015.

The related party transactions in respect of items
(a)(v) and (c) above also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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ZZ—hF+=A=+—H 31 December 2015

M. ZERE 2T A
ZERESEMT BENREHRY REE

period are as follows:

wmT
—®-1%+=4
=+-8

31 December 2015

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

THEE Financial assets
BERK AHHE
FE W BR =X ctRMEE wmaE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
FHET FExT FExT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments - 7,300 7,300
eERZS 2 Financial assets included in
CRIEE long term deposits 58 - 58
JEWE 5 BRI Trade receivables 20,300 - 20,300
D ATENZIE %4 K% Financial assets included in
HEmEWERER 2R prepayments, deposits and
BE other receivables 11,223 - 11,223
JEY & & R RIBREK Amounts due from joint
ventures 1,462 - 1,462
[REEELYER Pledged deposits 488 - 488
Re kA& FEER Cash and cash equivalents 375,161 - 375,161
408,692 7,300 415,992
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N.EBZERES 2T AE)

—B-HF+=F
=1
31 December 2015

THas

Financial liabilities

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

g

RAGTE

ZE@MEas

Financial

liabilities

at amortised

cost

FET

HK$’000

JERTE B BRI Trade payables 54,431
P AEMEMEEZ R Financial liabilities included in

fEstBfEzemAfE  other payables and accruals 127,886

MERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 68,927

—BREER Shareholder’s loan 110,000

361,244
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M. ZBEHE s 2E@MTAE) 41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

—E-HFE=AH
=+—H
31 March 2015
TREE Financial assets
BEF R R
JFEWLER R CREE 1BEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
TAET FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments - 7,300 7,300
(y=33: i Financial assets included in long
TREE term deposits 55 — 55
FEWE 5 BR K Trade receivables 21,121 — 21,121
P ATERFIE - 4 K& Financial assets included in
Hitng iRz £/ prepayments, deposits and
BE other receivables 10,115 - 10,115
& B RAIBRK Amounts due from joint ventures 1,201 — 1,201
EERER Pledged deposits 1,012 — 1,012
RekReFEER Cash and cash equivalents 112,052 — 112,052
145,556 7,300 152,856
cHeE Financial liabilities
1
AT 2
Ze@mas
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
FHET
HK$’000
ERE SRR Trade payables 18,053
P AHMEMNIEZLE  Financial liabilities included in
FTRAECZERAR other payables and accruals 16,241
Bt BERITREER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27,781
e —FIEB AR —3JEE  Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
il A% B AR 3K of a subsidiary 2,002
—HIRERK Shareholder’s loan 42,000
106,077
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2. eMTEZAFERAFES

43.

i

EEECHEARBEcEREE RS
MAEBEZATE TEEAIHEER
& EERMERS - B AEER
RNitFTAKRERAANRE - BT
ETRER SEAt 8 - AT ERERK
ARAEDRER B AR -

RZE—RE+_A=+—"RHE=ZF
—RFE=A=+—H8  XEBEKEARQ
A EEMIEZEAFEFEZE/mT
A o

BEEREEBBERBER

AEEFZeMTIABERE B
SRR EMESERR - R ME
HHT/T/\ RS BERRIMEE
Tiiﬁ% e B SRR - EMEN
BRFK -~ MY RIRITREE A RN — KB
NIRRTt

rEEepmTAEENTERRARE
%ﬂﬁﬁ‘mu@kﬁéﬂ e N AN @ B o

EE R MEEE R ERR SR
o B R

=&k
AEEZEERRTIEREHEKE
SR - AEER AT LRER D

FLHERBOEBEZ2RF - RZE
—HEF+-_A=+—HBRAKXKEF,H
HEKWE SERSHEBIBEI8% (ZF
—HF=ZA=1+—8 : BiB25%) °
MELF P RERERIMER " &
HEHAEBCEXEERKERNEBEY

2 SREERRRERE  NEE
EEERER—BAR - ARETE
ERE - EEENLREMEERER

AR (R B HR BR AE 15 e Ui [0 8BRS 755
gHN - AEEE T HEMERERNE
H&%%EEFAZTH&@éEE VAR 51
PRI Bl SR 52 R E RS
E'dtlitﬁﬁ:. K’Elﬁé ARAREZ
SERBEZEERWAEEE -

l:|/\

42,

43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities, except for
available-for-sale investments, approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments. Available-for-sale investments are
stated at cost less impairment as their fair values cannot
be reliably measured.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 March 2015, the Group
and the Company did not have any financial instruments
measured at fair value.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
comprise investments, trade and other receivables, cash
and short term deposits, long term deposits, balances
with the associate and a joint venture, trade payables,
other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and
an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for a
substantial portion of its business. Over 38% (31 March
2015: over 25%) of the Group’s trade receivables as
at 31 December 2015 were due from the Group’s five
largest customers. The failure of these customers to
make the required payments could have a negative
impact on the Group’s operating results. In order to
minimise the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for the determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is properly
managed and significantly reduced.
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43. B E R EEEERBE(E) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

EERRE(E)
MARNEBEEHERAIVEEBECE
=HETES W EBERIR IR

—_
on °

AEEEMEMEE(BRRE LA
£FHEER - AIHHERE - BURA
BRr M ERRIRA MBS NEN
PR - e REMBRFIAN %/
BE) < EERRREBHOTKE
mAERZ &= EREFRHLETAZ
fRmEfE -

RAEEFTEEREEKEZERZ
EERR  HiE— Pt 8EN
BRRUM T 21 R 22K EE o

MENE < [ bz
AEBUEEERBDESHE TAE
REBTRRER ZTAZEZHE
TRTANEREE(NEKE SR
) ZEHER - AR EERZ
BEREBN

AEBERRTEEMRTEER
BOEESFHEMN REE MR EEEG
Yo  AEER-_ZT—RF+ A
=t+—B—FRIMZRITEETIR
BRAERRRIFRERA

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale investments, amounts due from joint ventures
and the associate and financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 21 and 22 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings and banking facilities. The Group’s
bank borrowings would mature in less than one year as
at 31 December 2015 based on the carrying value of
borrowings reflected in the financial statements.
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43. B EREBEEERBE(E) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

MENE &R ()
REB|BEIR - ABFTAIRRIRFIBS
HE AEETRAECERNHEHRR

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

mr contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
—E-HF+=-A=+—H
31 December 2015
EBER PR=@ERF BB-—F sst
On Less than Over
demand 3 months 1 year Total
THERT THET THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
eI E SR Trade payables 4,809 49,622 - 54,431
5| R E AL FE T AR R % Financial liabilities included
EErRaEzZe/REE in other payables and
accruals 127,886 - - 127,886
B EERITIEE Interest-bearing bank
borrowings 69,632 - - 69,632
—ZREEXK Shareholder’s loan - - 110,000 110,000
202,327 49,622 110,000 361,949
—E-RF=A=+—H
31 March 2015
EER LPR=@ER #BBE—F fEt
On Less than Over
demand 3 months 1 year Total
FAT TAET FAET FAT
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
e E ZERR Trade payables 10,281 7,772 - 18,053
5| R EAD FE T AR 3R % Financial liabilities included
EEtREZE/AR in other payables and
accruals 16,241 - - 16,241
FEft—HKiB AR —3F%E  Due to a non-controlling
il I R BR X shareholder of a subsidiary 2,002 - - 2,002
ft B ERITEE Interest-bearing bank
borrowings 27,781 - - 27,781
—HBIRERK Shareholder’s loan = - 42,000 42,000
56,305 7,772 42,000 106,077
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43. B E R EEEERBE(E) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

SN [ B Foreign currency risk
AT RIBEAREEMES LIS TER The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
BAT  AREKRBEER &SR] end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
D) HREHREAEETAE change in the Renminbi and Japanese yen exchange
BrHRE(REEEEEREEZ rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
NEEZBAR) ° Group’s loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).
BATEE &,
SEHEIL 288 (Rd)Ez*
Change Increase/
Change in loss (decrease)
in rate  before tax in equity*
% FHT FET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-HF+ZA 31 December 2015
=t+—H
GBTTHUATEREX If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
B fE : against:
ARE Renminbi 5 (4,764) -
H Japanese yen 8 412 -
HB LA T B E X If the Hong Kong dollar
e : strengthens against:
ARHE Renminbi 5 4,764 -
H Japanese yen 8 (412) -
“T-RF=A=1+—H 31 March 2015
HBTTH AT EMEX If the Hong Kong dollar weakens
B21E against:
ARE Renminbi 5 (436) -
H Japanese yen 8 418 =
HBTTH AT EMEX If the Hong Kong dollar
FHE : strengthens against:
ARE Renminbi 5 436 -
H Japanese yen 8 (418) =
& TEEDHER * Excluding accumulated losses
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43. B EREBEEERBE(E) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

EREE

AEBERER T2RBRDRE
AEBRFELE  WHRRRECE
gmz-u&%%%%&%%&%%

AREBERERENRRE - WRBEHE
AT < B8 N & B LR A 1
B o R ABEEEANRER - K
SEFSARRNTRRZEE [
BRERBREEARRIEITHRND - AEE
WESZINEEMEATRKZER - 1
—_E-AFHA-HE+ZA=1—
BHEEEE—E-—hAF=-A="1+—
BIEFE - HBE  BRNEFILE

REBURBLERCREBEER AR
PFEB)ERERN - AEBZHERA
FEREN L REFFBIB— o B HRE
R RN

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the period from 1 April to 31 December
2015 and year ended 31 March 2015.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which
is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain the current ratio over one.
The current ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

—E-RE S

+=A=+—-H =A=+—H

31 December 31 March

2015 2015

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’'000

mMEBEE Current assets 471,514 182,980
mEEE Current liabilities 278,424 87,756
MENL Current ratio 1.69 2.09

140 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2015



MI5H=RMEE(E)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—ZT—RF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

44. KD T 2 IR R

RRABRBERR P BARRKER

Information about the statement of financial position of

e the Company at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
—E-RF —E—fF
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H
31 December 31 March
2015 2015
THER FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
WEBRAEZIRE Investments in subsidiaries - -
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEU B B 1~ B BR 3K Due from subsidiaries 270,660 134,406
B FRIA Prepayments 1,260 320
Re MIRTTEH Cash and bank balances 254,354 76,750
MEBEEBRE Total current assets 526,274 211,476
ok h=R CURRENT LIABILITIES
HifEfZIENEAEE  Other payables and accruals 1,463 2,031
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 524,811 209,445
EERERRBAERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 524,811 209,445
*RBEME NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
JE TP /BB 2 A1 BR R Due to subsidiary 60,000 -
BEFE Net assets 464,811 209,445
g EQUITY
BRI AR Issued capital 287,439 143,719
i Reserves 177,372 65,726
g R Total equity 464,811 209,445
M EEE MmEF Lzt
Mr. Shum Sai Chit Ms. Chi Bi Fen
EF EF
Director Director
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44, KPR TB 2 R RER(E)

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

M & - Note:
RABZEEREZOT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
REE BRERE
&F N3 i e PS Mg
Share Capital
premium  Contributed  redemption Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses Total
izt FEL FHT T FAL FEL
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ-EERA—A At 1 April 2014 409,710 21,976 419 (305,197) 126,908
EERXABELHE Total comprehensive loss for the year - - = (111,784) (111,784)
R Issues of shares 31(a) 52,697 - = = 52,697
RDBTRAY Share issue expenses (2,095) = = = (2,095)
RZZE-RF=A=+—HK At31March 2015 and 1 April 2015
“Z-1%WmA-A 460,312 21,976 419 (416,981) 65,726
HE2EFEBAE Total comprehensive loss for the period = = = (29,102) (29,102)
Rk Issues of shares 31(b) 143,719 - = = 143,719
RHBEIRZ Share issue expenses (2,971) = = = (2,971)
RZT-RE+ZA=1+—H  At31 December 2015 601,060 21,976 419 (446,083) 177,372

KRB ZHABBRIERE—NN=ZF
ARAE 2D EmRIAFTETZEEE
Mk B ARG, 2 A ER
BARBNERMDMEBEIT ARG
MEEBEZEHD - BEBRERTE
1981 —fAARIAIEETEBERT -
LA A BERIEA 2 SRR EK B 1E T
DK ©

45. MR 2 {L

BiREN_—_E—"F=A=-1+=H
BESESeHERKERH -

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior
to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, a company may make distributions to its members

out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2016.
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Financial Summary

A EW AR E R BomER 2 HF This summary does not form part of the audited financial

— & fn o statements.
EF RESULTS
—E2-5f
mA—HZE
“Z-5f
=8
=t+-H
i
For the
period
from
BE=A=t—-HALFE 1 April
For the year ended 31 March 2015 to 31
22— —E-=F ZT-NF Z—ZT—FF December
2012 2013 2014 2015 2015
THT THT FAEL THIL TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
WA Revenue 478,708 383,340 349,382 223,933 139,537
MAIER Loss before tax (76,872) (76,688) (86,789)  (110,504) (20,919)
B Income tax (46) 3 (16) (13) —
AEEERE Loss for the year (76,918) (76,685) (86,805)  (110,517) (20,919)
(A (B518) - Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
ARRIRERAA Equity holders of the Company (73,182) (75,724) (80,409) (107,460) (20,916)
IR Non-controlling interests (3,736) (961) (6,396) (3,057) 3)
AEEER Loss for the year (76,918) (76,685) (86,805)  (110,517) (20,919)
EEHAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
i
“E-HF
+=8
R=A=+-H =t-H
As at 31 March As at 31
T —E-=F Z—T-@mE —Z—HF December
2012 2013 2014 2015 2015
THT THT FET THL TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEME Total assets 523,959 431,960 349,791 339,496 853,742
BfEEE Total liabilities (112,406) (96,223)  (102,861)  (129,756)  (388,424)
411,553 335,737 246,930 209,740 465,318
ARRIRERAA Equity attributable to equity
e R% holders of the Company 407,403 332,392 250,509 216,311 471,581
JrEER Non-controlling interests 4,150 3,345 (3,579) (6,571) (6,263)
411,553 335,737 246,930 209,740 465,318
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Particulars of Major Properties

AEBR -_ZTE—RAF+_A=+—H#%
EEEMEZFBOT :

8 B

Name/location

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31

December 2015 are set out below:

5
Type

5

Lease term

HEWE

Leasehold properties:

1. BBENEERTBEIR
EMIETL21E
E13-24 5 K
Hb & P3 SRR B AL
Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza
9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

2. PHREZ=RZEEE TR
REMRRTIE
SYHERR
EMNTERE
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China

3. MEER®S
J& M T A R0
0] B8 96 5%
96 Ban He Road
Guangzhou Science Park
Guangzhou City
Guangdong Province
The People’s Republic of China

4. TEREMEIXERE
Hami Heavy Industrial Park District
Hami City
The People’s Republic of China

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

Industrial
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